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I. COMPANY OVERVIEW

1. General information
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Company Name

English Name

[.cgal representatives

IHeadquarter

Transaction Office

Southern Branch

Telephone
IFax
Website

Business Registration
Certificate

[Logo

Registered charter capital

Actual contributed charter
capital

CONG TY CO PHAN TIN HOC VIEN THONG
PETROLIMEX

PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC

Mr. Tran Ngoc Tuan — Chairperson of the BOD
Mr. Nguyen Van Quy — Director

No. 01 Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da
District, Ianoi City

15th Floor, DETECH TOWER Building, No. 08C Ton
That Thuyet Street, My Dinh 2 Ward, Nam Tu Liem
District, Hanoi City

6th Floor, Win Home Building, 209 Hoang Van Thu.,
Ward 8. Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City

(024) 3518-2072
(024) 3518-2067

www.PIACOM.com.vn

Business Registration Certificate No.: 0101409374 first
issued on September 23rd, 2003, by the Hanoi
Department of Planning and Investment, with the 8th
amendment on July 27th, 2023

PETROLIMEX

39.000.000.000 VND (Thirty-nine billion VND)
39,000.000,000 VND (Thirty-nine billion VND)

1.1. Company history and development

Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company (PIACOM), formerly known as Petrolimex Information Technology and
Automation Center, a subsidiary of Vietnam National Petroleum Corporation (now
Vietnam National Petroleum Group) was established in 1996.

In 2003, the Prime Minister issued Official Letter No. 589/CP-DMDN dated May
8th, 2003, on the equitisation and transformation of Petrolimex Information Technology
and Automation Center into a joint stock company.
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The company officially operates as a Joint Stock Company under the Business
Registration Certificate of Joint Stock Company No. 0101409374 first issucd by the
[Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment on September 23rd. 2003, with the 8th
amendment on July 27th, 2023 issued by the IHanoi Department of Planning and
Investment with a charter capital of 39 billion VND, with par valuc at 10.000
VND/share.

Throughout its development journey, PIACOM takes pride in being a driving force
behind the modernisation of Vietnam's petroleum sector. Information technology and
automation solutions provided by the Company have transformed petroleum business
management activities at Vietnam National Petroleum Corporation (now Victnam
National Petroleum Group) since the early 90s of the 20th century, thus establishing
PIACOM’s brand reputation, with a distinguished letter "P", as Vietnam's premier
professional service distributor and provider for petroleum businesscs. improving labour
productivity, business efficiency and commercial standards for its customers’
warchouses, export terminals and thousands of newly built petroleum retail stations
systems in the past 28 years.

PIACOM's information technology and automation solutions represent a scamlcess
integration of cutting-edge technology with core petroleum business processes and
decades of accumulated management experience from gencrations of petroleum
professionals, through many industry reforms and changes in sales operation policics.
These solutions have become an indispensable component for modern petrolecum
businesses. depots, and terminals throughout Vietnam.

* Gas station management solutions: EGAS, AGAS
< Enterprise resource planning solution: ERP
% SAP-ERP opcration and maintenance support services

<+ Petroleum depot automation solutions: Automation of export terminals.
automation of biofuel blending, automation of tank measurement

< Datacenter operation services and application management services on Datacenter
< Network system design and construction services

Today, PIACOM is present all over the country. With a professional tcam ol about
130 engincers and postgraduates in the ficlds of Information Technology and
Automation, PIACOM is ready to meet all petroleum management requirements with
modern, advanced, continuously upgraded technologies from world-leading providers.

PIACOM has completed the initial securities registration procedure at the IHanoi
Securities Depository (in December 9th, 2016) and commenced official trading on the
Unlisted public company market (UPCoM) since I'ebruary 22nd, 2017.

On September 6th, 2019, PIACOM's shares (ticker symbol: PIA) were officially
listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (IINX) with the reference price on the opening day
at 29,400 VND/share.

1.2. Key milestones in 2024

% Organising the 2024 Employece Conference, Comprehensive review of 2023
operations, and Orientation and tasks in 2024

The 2024 Employee Conference, Comprehensive review of 2023 operations. and
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Orientation and tasks in 2024, which was held on January 18th, 2024, pointed out the
advantages and challenges in 2023 and highlighted the achicvements as well unachieved
goals in such a turbulent year. At the same time, the Company's President and the Board
of Management also pointed out the orientation and important goals to focus on for 2024
—a new year full of opportunities as well as challenges:

- Marketing and sales operations: Promote market penctration activities, improve
sales opcrations, applying technology in after-sales service quality management to
increase customer trust in the Company’s products and services.

- Corporate governance: Continue to upgrade the corporate governance system
according to a modern and professional modcl; review and optimise corporate structure
towards strcamlined, efficient, and clear assignments: improve training quality:;
implement KPIs into the Company’s new salary mechanism.

- Information technology initiatives and digital transformation: Continue to invest

in upgrading PIACOM’s inhousc information system (PIIS), digitising the process of

cssential operations at the company towards a paperless electronic office.

- Investment in product upgrades: Implement investment and upgrades for core
products towards smarter and more convenient for customers.

- Corporate culture: Continue to strengthen and maintain core values embedded in
an over-20-year legacy: cultivate PIACOM people with unity. innovation, and aspiration
for growth; build customer confidence and trust when choosing and using the company's
products and scrvices.

% Organising the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024

On April 17th, 2024, PIACOM successfully held its 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Sharcholders. The General Meeting approved the 2024 business plan with the
following objectives: revenue growth of 15% and profit before tax growth of 10%
compared to 2023; focus on investing in product development and upgrades; emphasis
on human resource management strategics; organising business according to the 7Ps
marketing model and continuing digital transformation at the Company.

The Meeting was attended by members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory

Board, guests, and sharcholders representing 2,698,996 shares, equivalent to 69.21% of

the total voting shares.

With a spirit of seriousness and enthusiasm, the General Meeting approved the
reports and reached a high consensus on the company's objectives and action plan for
2024.

Some key targets for 2024 include:

- Total revenue from sales and service provision: 136,800 million VND;
- Total profit before tax: 18.350 million VND:

- Minimum dividend payout ratio: 10% per year;

In addition, the General Mecting approved the dismissal of Mr. Nguyen Dinh

Thanh from the Board of Directors due to his resignation as the capital representative of

Petrolimex Group Construction and Trading Corporation, effective April 17th, 2024. As
the company has not yet found a suitable candidate for nomination, the election for a
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replacement was not conducted at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.
Until a new independent Board member is elected, the Board of Directors of Petrolimex
Information Technology and Telecommunication JSC will temporarily operate with
four (4) members. The election of an additional independent Board member shall be
conducted as soon as possible in accordance with regulations.

*» Signing of the Cooperation Agreement between PIACOM and PECO

On June 20th, 2024, Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication
Joint Stock Company (PIACOM) and Petrolimex Equipment Joint Stock Company
(PECO) signed a Cooperation Agreement outlining a more comprehensive collaboration
in market expansion and commercialised products and services. The signing ceremony
was attended and witnessed by representatives of the Party Committee of Vietnam
National Petroleum Group (Petrolimex), leaders of Petrolimex Group Construction and
Trading Corporation (PGCC), representatives of PGCC member companies and the
executive boards of PIACOM and PECO.

PIACOM and PECO have maintained a long-standing and sustainable partnership.
achicving remarkable results in providing equipment, components, materials, and
technology solutions for automation in petrol stations across the country. Notable
achievements include:

In 2014, the two parties signed a memorandum of business cooperation agreement.
enabling PIACOM to successfully integrate the Tatsuno and PECO fuel dispenser
systems with the EGAS Gas station management system at over 2,700 Petrolimex petrol
stations and hundreds of other stations in the market. PIACOM also integrated the
I'ranklin automatic tank measurement system provided by PLECO with the EGAS system
at nearly 100 Petrolimex petrol stations.

The two parties also cooperated in the approval process for P1:CO fuel dispenser
models, ensuring their intcgration with the EGAS system while complying with lcgal
requirecments set by the National Measurement and Quality Standards Committce.
thereby protecting the interests of both Petrolimex and their shared customers.

Recognising the vast market potential, PIACOM and PECO decided to leverage
their strengths to expand market reach and commercialise their products and services.
Key objectives of this collaboration include: The two partics will become reciprocal
sales channels, promoting cross-product trade; Developing a comprehensive product
combo for fuel station management, including PECO fuel dispensers, PECO Controller
cabinets, and PIACOM’s EGAS software.

*

< Presenting the Per-Sale E-Invoice Issuance Solution at Tax Department
Workshops

Following the firm dircctives of the Prime Minister and the General Department
of Taxation regarding the implementation of per-sale e-invoice issuance at retail fucl
stations, provincial and municipal Tax Departments have organised workshops and
training sessions to disseminate regulations and introduce per-sale c-invoice issuance
solutions to petrol and oil trading businesses in the area.

With the urgency of effectively implementing c-invoicing for petroleum retail
business activities under Decree 123/2020/ND-CP. several official dispatches were
issued to enforce the implementation: Official Dispatch No. 1123/CD-TTg dated
November 18th, 2023, Official Dispatch No. 1284/CD-TTg dated December 01st. 2023.
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Official Dispatch No. 10/CD-TCT dated December 19th, 2023.

Honored to receive invitations from provincial and municipal Tax Departments,
PIACOM participated in the exchange and training programs organised by the Tax
Departments to introduce the per-sale e-invoice issuance solution, addressed concerns,
and provided guidance to petrolcum businesscs during the implementation process.

PIACOM’s per-sale e-invoice issuance solution is built on the EGAS gas station
management system, which complies with the Government's Decree 123/2023/ND-CP
and Dccree 80/2023/ND-CP on issuing e-invoices for cach sale at petrol stations.

1.3. Major project launch and implementation milestones in 2024
<+ Implementation of Accounting software for chemical production sector

On January 2nd. 2024, Pctrolimex Chemicals Co., Ltd. held a go-live ceremony
for the implementation of accounting softwarce in the chemical product manufacturing
and trading scctor.

The accounting software is built on the foundation of PIACOM ERP and
specifically developed by PIACOM for businesses in the chemical product
manufacturing and trading scctor. The software is designed to meet the core
management nceds of enterpriscs, covering purchasing, sales, inventory. financial
accounting, ctc.

IFollowing the go-live, PIACOM continues to accompany and support Petrolimex
Chemicals Co., LLtd in the implementation process, ensuring the smooth operation of the
software in the company's regular business activitics.

The successful collabouration between PIACOM and Petrolimex Chemicals Co..
[.td. marks an important milestone and expands opportunities for PIACOM's solutions
in industrics beyond petroleum business, such as chemical production.

“ Implementation of EGAS API Solution — Issuing E-Invoices per Sale in Binh
Thuan Trading Joint Stock Company (DDS Petro)

On August 6th, 2024, PIACOM and Binh Thuan Trading Joint Stock Company
signed a cooperation agreement to implement the EGAS API e-invoice issuance solution
across all retail stations in Binh Thuan province.

Regarding technology for petroleum businesses, PIACOM is a leading expert in
business management and comprehensive digital solutions with more than 30 years of
experience in successfully implementing many digital petroleum solutions for both
domestic and foreign customers. EGAS API, in particular, is recognised for its high
stability and its ability to fully meet the tax authority’s requirements for issuing invoices
per sale. These were the key factors that convinced Binh Thuan Trading Joint Stock
Company to choose PIACOM, with a long-term vision of achieving comprehensive
digital transformation across its entirc petroleum retail chain, first with the EGAS API
solution.

1.4. Other events

On January 16th, 2024, PIACOM participated in the Digital Transformation
Conference for the Petroleum Industry, organised by the Vietnam Petroleum
Association.

On July 12th, 2024, PIACOM held the Mid-Year Business Review Conference to
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assess the company's production and business activities for the first half and to outline
tasks for the second half of 2024.

2. Business lines and operating areas:

2.1. Business lines

The Company's business lines include:

Codes of
business lines

Name of business line

4651 (Main)

Wholesale of computers, computer peripheral equipment and
software

Details: - Software provision; - Trading of computers, software,
peripheral devices, electronic equipment, IT equipment,
automation devices, and industrial system components;

3313

Repair of electronic and optical equipment

Details: Maintenance and repair of computers, software, peripheral
devices, clectronic equipment, I'T devices. automation equipment. and
industrial production line systems:

3320

Installation of industrial machinery and equipment

Details: Installation of computers, software, peripheral devices.
clectronic equipment, IT devices, automation cquipment. and
industrial production line systems;

6201

Computer programming activitics
Details: Software production;

6202

Computer consultancy and computer system management
Details: Software consulting;

2620

Manufacturing of computers and peripheral equipment
Details: - Manufacture of computers; - Manufacture of automation
cquipment;

7490

Other professional, scientific and technical activitics n.c.c.

Details: - Science and technology development and application
services; - Consulting on technology transfer and technical solutions
in electronics, I'T, and automation;

6190

Other telecommunications activitics

Details: - Network sctup and provision of Internet services (IAP, ISP):
- Provision (directly or reselling) of telecommunications scrvices
(basic, valuc-added);

7740

Renting and leasing of non-financial intangible

Details: Iecasing industrial designs, trademarks and other non-
financial asscts:
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Codes of

- . Name of business line
business lines

Wholesale of clectronic and telecommunications equipment and parts
4652 Details: Trading of materials and equipment for postal zfnd
teclecommunications, measurement and control devices, automation
cquipment, electrical equipment, and electronic components:

Commission agents, brokers and auction agents
4610 Details: - Commercial brokerage; - Agents for buying, selling, and
consignment of goods.

Specialized design activitics
7410 Details: Consultancy and design of automation systems (excluding
construction design services and transportation vehicle design;

Other information service activities n.c.c

6399 Details: - Data storage and information provision services; - Data
storage servicces.

Other education n.c.c.

8550 Details: - Training to enhance professional qualifications in the ficlds
of electronics. information technology and automation; - Vocational
training in electronics, automation, and information technology.

Trading of own or rented property and land usc rights

6810 ' :

Details: Real estate leasing;

Renting and lecasing of other machinery, equipment and tangible
7730 goods without opcrator

Details: - Office machinery and equipment rental services; - Rental of]
machinery, equipment, software, and transportation vehicles.

2.2. Business area

The Company operates across the entire territory of Vietnam and internationally.
3. Governance model, business organisation and management structure
3.1. Governance model

The Company is organised and operated under the Joint Stock Company model.
complying with: LLaw on Enterpriscs No. 59/2020/QH 14 approved by the XIV National
Asscmbly on June 17th, 2020, and guiding documents: Specialised laws and other
relevant regulations: The Company's Charter as approved by the General Meeting of
Sharcholders.

3.1.1. General Meeting of Sharcholders

The General Meeting of Sharcholders consists of all shareholders with voting
rights, which is the highest decision-making body of the Company. The rights and
obligations of the General Meeting of Sharcholders are specified in Article 15 of the
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Company's Charter, which was approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders on
April 19th, 2021.

3.1.2. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (BOD) is the governing body of the Company. with full
authority to act on behalf of the Company in making decisions and exercising its rights

and obligations, except for matters under the jurisdiction of the General Meeting of

Shareholders. The rights and obligations of the BOD are specified in Article 27 of the
Company's Charter, which was approved by the General Meeting of Sharcholders on
April 19th, 2021.

The members of the Board of Directors in 2024 include:

Mr. Tran Ngoc Tuan . Chairperson of the BOD
Mr. Nguyen Van Quy : Member — Director

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Thanh : Member
(Dismissed from the Board on April 17th, 2024)

Mr. Hoang Hai Duong : Member
Mr. Nguyen Anh Toan  : Member

3.1.3. Supervisory Board

The General Meeting of Sharcholders elects the Supervisory Board to oversce the
Company's business activitics, management, and operations. The Supervisory Board
consists of three (03) members, with a term of no more than five (05) years, and
members may be re-clected. The rights and obligations of the Supervisory Board arc
specified in Article 39 of the Company's Charter, which was approved by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders on April 19th, 2021.

The members of the Supervisory Board in 2024 include:
Ms. Dang Thi Hong Ha : THead of the Supervisory Board
Ms. Do Thuy Linh : Member
Ms. Tran Thi Huong : Member
3.1.4. Board of Management

The BOD appoints onc of its members or hires another person to serve as the
Director. The Director is responsible for the day-to-day business operations of the
Company, under the supervision of the BOD, and is accountable to the BOD and the

law for the execution of assigned rights and obligations. The rights and obligations ol

the Director are specified in Article 35 of the Company's Charter, which was approved
by the General Meeting of Sharcholders on April 19th, 2021.

The Vice Director assists the Director in managing the Company according (o
assigned tasks and delegated authority and is responsible to the Dircctor for the dutics
assigned.

The Board of Management in 2024 includes:
Mr. Nguyen Van Quy  : Director
Mr. Tran Dang Dung : Vice Dircector
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3.2. Management structure

%% GENERAL MEETING OF

\ *SHAREHOLDERS' ¢

Source: Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company

The Company's current organisational structure includes the Company's Head
Office and the Southern Branch.

The departments/units within the company perform their functions and dutics
according to their professional expertise, being organised in a streamlined structure but
still ensuring cffective management, organisation, and operation of daily business
activities as directed by the Board of Management for high efficiency and productivity.

3.3. Subsidiaries and associated companies: Nonc.
4. Development orientation
4.1. Main objectives of the Company for the period 2021 - 2025

The company continues to focus on becoming the leader in I'T and automation in the
petrolcum and oil and gas industry in Vietnam. Some key targets are specified as belows:

- Revenue and profit growth rate: 10%/year:;

- Non-core business market share: > 30%/total revenuc;

- Dividend payout ratio: > 10%/year;

- Average income: > 20 million VND/person/month.
4.2. Medium- and long-term development strategies

The Company aims to be the leading I'T and automation solution provider in the
petroleum industry.

The Company focuses on investing in rescarch and development to create a
comprehensive, specialised product portfolio that is competitive in both domestic and
intcrnational markets. It also secks to enhance its internal management, strengthen the
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role of governance, and improve risk management in business operations. The human
resource development program will be implemented to ensure a continuous increasc in
production capacity and support the ongoing growth and expansion of the business.

4.3. Sustainable development

As a leading information technology and automation company in the petroleum
industry in Vietnam, PIACOM is aware of the importance of sustainable development.
always ensuring a balance between achieving cconomic goals, environmental
protection, and social responsibility:

- Sustainable growth in revenue and profit;

- Developing a high-quality workforce: actively participating in and contributing
to community activitics;

- Complying with tax obligations to the State budget:

- Raising awareness of environmental protection and cnergy conservation.
5. Risks
5.1. Economic risks

In 2024, the global situation continues to be complex and unpredictable, with
numerous risk factors and uncertainties. Military conflicts continue to escalate, strategic
competition among major countrics is intensifying, many nations arc strengthening trade
protection policies, public debt and budget deficits are rising, some major cconomics
arc experiencing downturns, and disruptions to global supply chains have alfected
global peace, stability, and cconomic growth. Additionally, natural disasters and
extreme weather events have severely impacted the livelihoods of people and the socio-
cconomic development in many countries. In this context, under the lecadership of the
Party. the accompany of the National Assembly, along with the proactive, flexible and
decisive direction and management of the Government and the Prime Minister, the closc
coordination of ministries, sectors, and local authorities, as well as the solidarity. trust.
and support of the pcople and the business community, Vietnam's socio-cconomic
situation in 2024 continues to show a clear recovery trend, with growth gradually
improving month by month, quarter by quarter. Inflation is lower than the target, key
balances are ensured, and results in many important arcas have met or exceeded set
goals. This makes Vietnam a bright spot for cconomic growth in the region and the
world.

As a participant in the broader economic system, the Company is certainly not
exempt from the impacts of these changing factors.

5.2. Legal risks

The stability and consistency of the legal system will affect the Company's
production and business activitics as well as other businesses. This constitutes a
systemic legal risk. affecting most companies subject to legal regulations. Changes in
the legal system can bring about both advantages and disadvantages for the Company's
operations.

The Company's business activities are governed by various legal documents (Civil
Code, Enterprise Law., Commercial Law, Seccuritiecs Law, Labour Code, ctc.).
Mcanwhile, Vietnamese law is constantly being revised and improved to align with
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rcality and international integration processes, leading to frequent adjustments and
amendments. Any changes will have direct or indirect impacts on the Company's
production and business operations.

The Company's business activitics arc growing in scale, not only in the territory of
Victnam. Policies and legal documents related to the Company's business lincs arc
frequently updated, creating risks il not promptly adapted. The significant differences
in lcgal systems and cultures when doing business in international markets present an
increasingly large challenge.

The ability to manage and control business activities is a key factor in minimising
lcgal risks. Along with the development process, the Company will continue to
implement mechanisms for monitoring, updating, and adjusting to ensure optimal
adaptation to changes in the legal environment.

5.3. Other risks

Risks rclated to strategy and vision could result in inadequate investment in
rescarch and development, hindering the ability to create high-tech products, new unique
products, and specialised I'T services that better meet users’ needs and can be sustainably
exploited on a large scale.

[Tuman resource risks lead to the quantity and quality of the workforce not keeping
up with the growth demand as well as new labour standards within the Information
technology industry.

Information sccurity risks: Information is onc of the Company's most important
and valuable asscts. Risks such as data leakage. alteration. loss. or denial of access can
severely impact the Company's operations, reputation, and strategy.

Ordinary business risks such as bad debt, especially from customers outside the

Petrolimex system, excessive inventory, fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates,
and changes in market prices, all of which can ncgatively affect business activities.

Risks arising from investment activities: Ineffective investments can lead to
significant consequences concerning capital, cash flow, and business performance.

Risks arising from the owner's capital withdrawal: The withdrawal of capital by
the owners could lead to a change in management leadership, along with changes in
policics related to human resources, investment, and other areas.

In addition, the Company may cncounter a number of force majeure risks such as
carthquakes, storms, floods, fires. epidemics, or wars, all of which can adversely affect
the Company's business operations.

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONS IN 2024

1. Business performance in 2024

Actual in | Actual | This year iE

No. Description Unit |the previous| in this |/ Previous
B B o year year | year (%)
e : Million =
1 | Total revenue and other income 119,553 | 160.014 133.8
e ———— A L S £ ————————— S S TS E— VND — e —
Net revenue from sales and services Aﬁj{;gn 118.471 | 158.894 134.1
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2 | Total profit before tax
3 | Total profit after tax
4 | Dividend payout Ratio

5 | Total investment value

Actual in Actual Iﬁls yuu |
Description ' Unit |the previous| in this |/ Previous
o o | year | year  year (%)
Million i

.......... _ lwwp| e mam| s
Million )

VND 13,164 | 13.989 106.3

v 20 1249 60.0

Million | g ' ' —
VND 1,244 6,888 _ 553.7

(Source: Audited financial statements for the years 2023 and 2024; Company Documents)

Note: (*) is tentative and will be presented at the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders in 2025.

2. Organisation and personnel

2.1. Board of Management list

The list of the Company's Board of Management as of December 31st. 2024. 1s as

follows:
Date of Professional o s |
No. Full name it ’ . Position shares
birth Qualifications
owned
Bachelor of Iiconomics.
1 | Nguyen Van Quy| 05/05/1983 | Master of Business Director 11,720 |
Administration
Telecommunications Vice |
2 | Tran Dang Dung | 07/03/1982 | Engincer (specialised in ; 60.009
. . Dircctor
I l;lcclrpn_l___c_:_s_)_ | [
T — Bachelor of Iiconomics. . i
3 Cao Thi Hong 27/09/1987 | Master of Business and Chiel 4.084
Van Accountant |
Management j

(The general list of securities holders as of December 31st, 2024,
is provided by the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation)

2.2. Biography of Board of Managemen members

% Mr. Nguyen Van Quy — Director

Carcer history:

Time period

Company

Position

09/2005 - 01/2006
02/2006 — 07/2006

10/2006 — 10/2008

Phuong Hoang Joint Stock Company

Viet Link Co.. 1.td.

and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company
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Accountant

General accountant

Specialist of Accounting |

and I'inance Department
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|
|

Time period

Company

Position

11/2008 — 06/2009

07/2009 — 02/2012

Petrolimex Information Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Deputy Manager of
Accounting and Finance
Department

Petrolimex Information [cchnology
and Tclecommunication Joint Stock

| Company

Petrolimex Information lcchnology
and Tclecommunication Joint Stock
Company

05/2018 — 09/2019

10/2019 - 07/2023

07/2023 - Present

J
|

. Petrolimex Information Technology

and Telecommunication Joint Stock

Company

Petrolimex Information lcchnology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock

' Petrolimex Information Technology

and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Head of Accounting and
FFinance Department

Chief Accountant

Vice Director of the
Company, Chief
Accounl'ml

Vice Director of the
Company

Member of the Board of
Directors, Director of the
Company

“* Mr. Tran Dang Dung — Vice Director

Carcer history:

Time period

Com pany

Position

1 09/2005 - 09/2006

10/2006 - 11/2008

Petrolimex Information Technology
| and Tclccommunication Joint Stock

| Company

Petrolimex lnlormallon 1cchn010gy
and Telecommunication Joint Stock

Company

12/2008 - 06/2009

07/2009 - 02/2013

03/2013 - 03/2015

04/2015 - 06/2019

| Company

| Company

Petrolimex Information lcchnology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock

Specialist of
Telecommunications

Service Department

Specialist of Network
Equipment Department

Project Department,
System Management
Team Leader

Petrolimex Information Iechnology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock

Vice Director of ICT
Branch

Petrolimex Information lcchnology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock

Petrolimex Information lu.hnoloey
and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

07;’2019 09/2023

Petrolimex Informallon Technology

Director of IC'T Branch

Project Manager

Dlrcclor of Southcrn
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Time period

Company

Position

10/2023 — Present

and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Petrolimex Information Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock

Company

Branch

Vice Director of the
Company

*
0.0

Carcer history:

Time period

Ms. Cao Thi Hong Van — Chief Accountant

Company

10/2009 — 05/2011

06/2011 - 02/2012

03/2012 - 10/2012

11/2012 - 04/2015

04/2015 —04/2018

04/2018 — 04/2019

04/2019 —09/2019

10/2019 — Present

Petrolimex Information Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Petrolimex Information Technology

and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Branch of Petrolimex Information
Technology and Telecommunication

| Jount Stock Company

Petrolimex Information Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Petrolimex Information Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

Petrolimex Information Technology

and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company
Petrolimex Information Technology
and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company

2.3. Changes in the Board of Management in 2024

In 2024, the Company experienced no significant changes in the personnel of the
Board of Management.

2.4. Labour structure and policies for employees

PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC

<+ Labour structure

Position

Specialist of Accounting
and Finance Department

Deputy Head of
Accounting and Finance
Department

IHcad of General
Accounting Department

and Accounting
Department

Member of the
Supervisory Board.
Deputy Head of FFinance
and Accounting
Department

Head of the Supervisory
Board (full-time)

In charge of Finance and
Accounting Department

Chicel Accountant

As of December 31, 2024, the total number of employees in the company is 130.
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The labour structurc based on qualifications is shown in the following table:

No. Criteria Quantity (People) P“r:f/:)“'gc |
| l_.i_B); Qualiﬁcationls ________ Lt 130_1 - 100,0!
| I | Postgraduatc Qualiﬁcali();; N 18 139
12 BaChC]m Iscém B Sl L 1 03 —
3 College, vo_c;(;;l;cﬁool r, T “ = 1.5
& | Dimaplud ettetlnii ek - | . - @) 0
- __”igh e de.gm o 2 : -
I | By nature of work i 130 | 100,0
1 __ = ldbour __________ . =) L L e L _____%_._ =
e o e e
S | Ty gender 10 100,0
el s TR (ST o)
2 Malc...%rkm e A S, | Wl ST 92 70.3"

(Source: Employee list of the Company as of December 31st, 2024)
* Policies for employees

In 2024, the Company continues to strictly comply with the regulations of the
[Labour Code, Social Insurance I.aw, Occupational Safety and IHecalth Law, and other
rclated legal documents in labour management. The living standards of employees are
maintained in a stable condition, with 100% of employees enrolled in social insurance.
In addition to the prescribed social insurance regime, in order to enhance employee
wellare, health care benefits, and reward policics, the Company continues to purchasc
annual health insurance packages for its staff. I'urthermore, to support employeces during
difficult times, the Company organised visits and provided aids for employees and their
families when they were ill or facing health challenges.

3. Investment and project implementation status
<+ Major investments and project status

In 2024, for the first time in recent years, the Company has cxceeded the
investment plan, although the investment valuc is still modest at 6,888 million VND,
cquivalent to 172.2% of the 2024 plan. being more than 5 times higher than 2023.

The Company continued to prioritise investment as a key driver for long-term
competitiveness and growth, including investing in developing new products, upgrading
existing products and cquipping information technology infrastructure. In 2024, the
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Company has implemented the following activities:

- Product investment: Completed the feasibility research and submit for investment
approval, coordinate with partners to implement the project "Developing sccond-
generation Enterprise Gas Station Management Software (EGAS-II) and enterprisc
resource planning system (L:RP-II)". By the end of the year. 70% of the product
technology foundation has been completed.

- Deployed the procurement of information technology infrastructure systems to
cnsure operational stability, data security, and cybersecurity for both the Company and
its customers, including: Firewall equipment, servers, load-balancing cquipment,
nctwork storage equipment, ctc.

¢+ Subsidiaries, associated companies: None
4. Financial situation
a) Financial situation
Unit: Million VND

(Source: Audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024)

b) Key financial indicators

Indicators Unit 2023 2024

1. Indicators of liquidity

I (,urr(,m Ratio Times 3.3 3.1

3 Qu1ck Rdll() R Times o 3 28

o r e S S T
R | Times | 04] 04
: lnvcnt()ry of operetions Sene — — -~ —
] T _‘ = v =
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Indicators Unit 2023 2024

4. Indicators of profitability

Ay ——— e T P
¢ Return on l-iquily .(R_(.)Iﬁ{“) B 20.6 ._ o 20.8
+ Return on Assets (ROA) % 13.9 14.3
1 ()pcraling Profit Margin | RN O T 14 11.8

(Source: Audited financial statements for 2023 and 2024)
5. Shareholder structure, change of owner's investment capital

a) Shares:

Total outstanding shares: 3.900,000 shares
Number of freely transferable shares: 3,900,000 shares
Number of shares restricted from transfer: 0 shares

b) Structure of shareholders

List of sharcholders holding 5% or morc of charter capital as of December 31st, 2024:

T e

|' l ID/ Passport/

Business
Registration iyt Ownership
Nn.l Sharcholder Address " A of shares N
- - |
Rstablishment | =0 |
Decision '
Petrolimex
Construction and | No. 01 Kham
Trading Thien, Kham

1 | Corporation - One | Thicn Ward, 0108231041 1,962,905 50.33%
Member Limited | Dong Da

[Liability District, Ianoi
Company
No. 30, Lane
2> | Hoang Hai Duong fgng‘l"h&ggg 011714327 390,985 | 10.03%
|I Hanoi | |

9/3 Sukhumvit
Rd Soi 27
Bangkok.
Thailand

Total 2575490 | 66.04%

(Source: General list of securities holders as of December 31st, 2024, provided by the
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation)

3 | Dennis Peter Eric 100076 221.600 5.68%
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Sharcholder structure as of December 31st, 2024:

Number " Ownership

. Number of lotal value
No. Sharcholder of shares Percentage

Shareholders (VND)
owned (%)

I | Organisations 7 2,169,185 | 21,691,850,000 55.6
1 | Domestic Organisations 41 1,993,925 19,939,250.000 51.1
2 | Foreign Organisations 3 175,260 1,752,600,000 4.5
II | Individuals 216 | 1,730,815 | 17,308,150,000 44.4
I | Domestic Individuals 205 | 1.450.,572| 14.505,720,000 372
2 | Foreign Individuals 11 280.243 2.802.430.000 1.2
I | Treasury Stocks - - - .
Total 223 | 3,900,000 | 39,000,000,000 100

(Source: General list of securities holders as of December 31st, 2024, provided by the
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation)

¢) Changes in the owner's investment capital: None

d) Trading of treasury stocks: None

e) Other securities: None

6. Report on Environmental and Social Impacts of the Company

6.1. Environmental Impact: None

6.2. Management of raw materials

a) The amount of raw materials used for the production and packaging of the
company's main products and services in the year

During the year, the Company used 37,992 million VND of raw materials for the
production of its products and services.

b) Report on the percentage of recycled raw materials used for the production of the
company's main products and services: None

6.3. Energy consumption

In 2024, the Company has spent 650 million VND on the usc of fuel and encrgy.

6.4. Water consumption: Nonc

6.5. Compliance with Environmental protection laws

- Number of violations sanctioned for non-compliance with environmental laws

and regulations: Nonc.

- The total amount of money sanctioned for non-compliance with environmental

laws and regulations: 0 VND.
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6.2. Labour policies

* Number of employees, average salary
- Number of employees as of January 1st, 2024: 126 pcople
- Number of new employees during the period: 20 people
- Number of employees leaving during the period: 16 people
- Number of employees as of December 31st, 2024: 130 people
- Average number of employces actually employed: 124 people
- Avecrage salary: 22.5 million VND/person/month

<+ Labour policies to ensure employee health, safety and welfare

The Company pays salarics according to the regulations and distribution plans to
cnsurc the Company's salary sources and employces' incomes. Salarics, including fixed
and performance-based pay. are disbursed promptly and periodically.

The company fully complics with social insurance, health insurance., and
uncmployment insurance policics for 100% of employees. Employees are also entitled
to annual Icave, sick Icave, and maternity lecave in accordance with the provisions of the
[Labour Code.

Occupational safety and health measures: provide labour protection equipment.
organise fire prevention and firefighting training, and conduct workplace safety and
hygiene inspections at project sites.

In addition, the Company also has a policy of annual health check-ups (once per
year); The company buys health care insurance packages for employees, and assists
cmployees in purchasing hecalth care insurance packages for their family members:
Summer vacation trip policy: welfare regime on major holidays (New Year, L.unar New
Ycar, Hung King's Commemoration Day, International Labour Day, Independence Day,
cle.).

< Employee training activities

Identificd as one of the key tasks of the year, the Company continues to promote
internal training, focusing on the following contents: I'ostering project management
knowledge and capacity; Communication of corporate culture, new salary mechanism;
Advanced professional training to improve cxpertise and competencies. As a result, in
2024, the Company has organised 34 training courses with 816 employece enrollments.

The Company regularly conducts training and coaching programs to help
cmployeces improve their professional skills, management abilities, and other soft skills.

6.3. Report on social responsibility to the local community

In 2024, the Company actively participated in various campaigns and supported
charitable funds initiated by the Corporation and local authoritics:

- Participated in the voluntary blood donation program "A Drop of Pink Gasoline
for Passion — A Drop of Red Oil for Life" initiated by Vietnam Oil and Gas Group
(Pectrolimex);

- In collaboration with the Trade Union of the PGCC Corporation and its affiliated
PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
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unions, the Company funded and supported housing construction and gift distribution
in Nguyen Binh and Hoa An districts, Cao Bang province. Additionally, the Company
organised a meeting and tribute to war heroes with the theme "Return to the Origin” (as
launched by the People's Army Newspaper);

- Responded to the call from the PGCC Corporation's Trade Union, PIACOM's
Trade Union organised a fundraiser to support victims affected by Typhoon No. 03. The
Company's Trade Union also supported schools in Cao Bang affected by Typhoon No.
03 (Yagi), in response to the call from the Industry and ‘I'rade Magazinc.

- Organised visits to wounded soldiers, martyrs® familics, and hosted end-of-ycar
meetings: visited employees and their families who were ill or had health issucs: giving
gifts on the Lunar New Year to retired employees.

- Engaged in activities related to maintaining public order, firc safcty. and
preventing social evils in both the workplace and residential arcas, promoting healthy
lifestyles. The Company also contributed to the movement of national unity to build a
new life in local communities and implemented civilized practices within the
organisation.

6.8. Reports on green capital market activities as per SSC Guidelines: None.
[1I. REPORTS AND EVALUATIONS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
1. Situation overview

The global economy in 2024 maintained a moderate recovery at around 3.2%
(cquivalent to 2023, according to IMI° 10/2024). but unevenly. with disparitics between
countries, and between the service and manufacturing sectors. Inflation has cooled
down, creating favorable conditions for central banks to lower interest rates and case
monetary policies to support growth and stabilise global financial markets. However,
the global economy still faced numerous risks and challenges: particularly. geopolitical
tensions in the Middle East and Ukraine remained complex; trade and technology
competition. protectionism, and trade fragmentation arc increasing: risks rclated to
energy sccurity, food security, cybersecurity, natural disasters and extreme wecather still
persist, while inflation and interest rates, though declining, remain high, keeping
financial and currency risks present.

Domestic situation:

Iiconomy: Vietnam's GDP in 2024 grew by 7.09%, surpassing the set target (6-
6.5%) and exceeding forecasts by international organisations, ranking as the highest in
ASEAN and among the top five globally for growth. The cconomy rcached
approximately 476.3 billion USD in size. Industrial production incrcased by 8.4%. the
highest rate since 2020. Macrocconomic conditions remained stable, with inflation well-
controlled. Interest rates remained steady, credit growth was positive, exchange rates
and bad debt were kept under control. and the business environment showed significant
improvement.

Politics: In 2024, Vietnam underwent key leadership transitions while maintaining
stability and development. The Party and State remained committed to institutional
breakthroughs and organisational strecamlining. The National Assembly and
Government intensified efforts to refine institutions, resolve cconomic bottlenecks, and
promote growth while controlling inflation.
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Companies in the petroleum scctor, including Petrolimex, faced the dual challenge
of complying with new state regulations while innovating to remain competitive. Some
of the Company's major clients continued to address lingering financial difficultics.

The Company continues to identify Petrolimex market as a foundation for
expanding and developing both domestic and foreign markets; Focus on the business of
the following products: Enterprisc Gas Station Management Software (EGAS):
Iinterprise resource planning software (ERP); Automation products for petroleum
storage [facilitics, petrolecum dispatch terminals: Automation Gas Station Soltwarc
(AGAS): and I'T system services, which are traditional products accepted by the market
to maintain and develop the Company's business operations.

PIACOM enters the fiscal year of 2024 with advantages and disadvantages,
specifically as follows:

e Advantages:

- The Government's strong commitment to transparency in the petroleum trading
market, coupled with the growing demand for digital transformation in management and
governance among petroleum enterprises, driven by competition and the profound
impact of the IFourth Industrial Revolution across all aspects of socio-economic
activitics.

- The Company bencfits from the support and attention of Vietnam National

Petroleum Group. Petrolimex Group Construction and Trading Corporation, as well as
its partners and customers.

- The Company's products have solidificd their position in the market, serving both
Petrolimex and external customers.

- The Company continues to focus on building a robust corporate governance
system, implementing a salary policy linked to KPIs; Adopt policies to attract highly
skilled technical personnel capable of consulting and exccuting large-scale projects;
Continuously upgrade its business information systems: Maintain the ISO 9001:2015
quality management system; Develop a professional sales team; Invest in enhancing
core products to prepare for future projects.

- The new situation compels businesscs. including the petroleum trading market,
to adapt their production and business activitics, and accelerate digital transformation to
survive and develop.

e Disadvantages:

The contract value carried forward from 2023 is low (15,532 million VND).

The Company lacks a strong core team and expert personnel.

The sales team is understaffed and has not yet adapted to market demands.

The Company's customers have been severely impacted by unpredictable global
fuel price fluctuations, leading many to significantly reduce investments.

2. Results of key tasks

a) Results of business operations
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Unit: Million VND

2024 achievement

Actual results ratio % compared
T Plan to
No. Description 2024 |
Actua Plan
2024 2023 2023 2024
A B I 2 3 4=2/3 5=2/1
1 Total Revenue 137,300 | 160,014 | 119,553 133.8 116.5
13 |Revenuefram sales:of 136,800 | 158,894 | 118.471 134.1 116.2
goods and services
- | Sofiware & ERP Sector 61,197 | 54,430 112.4
- Automation Sector 60,225 36,765 163.8
- | System Service Sector 37472 | 27,276 137.4
1.2 | Financial revenue 500 1.040 1.042 99 .8 208.0
1.3 | Other income 79 40 197.5
2 | Profit before tax 18,350 18,380 16,629 110.5 100.2
3 | Profit after tax 14,130 13,989 13,164 106.3 99.0
4 | Investment value 4,000 6,888 1,244 553.7 172.2
g | SRR 1 IR St 7,500 | 8,017| 5913| 1356| 106.9
Budget

Overall evaluation of implementation results:

- Total revenue reached 160,014 million VND, equaling 133.8% of 2023"s [igurc.
reaching 116.5% of the 2024 plan.

- Profit before tax reached 18,380 million VND, cqualing 110.5% of2023"s [igurc.
reaching 100.2% of the 2024 plan.

- Revenue outside Petrolimex reached 43,287 million VND. accounting for 27.3%.

- Service revenue reached 92,139 million VND, accounting for 58% of total
revenue, equaling 115.3% of 2023"s figure.

b) General Business Performance Assessment

In 2024, the Company's business performance showed positive progress compared
t0 2023. The Company's products, services and implementation capabilities were further
validated and gained stronger market acceptance. The successful exccution of annual
contracts along with Iigas contracts for non-Petrolimex customers and franchisces
during the first Quarter: as well as ERP implementations, warchouse automation. 'l
solutions, and SMO contracts in subsequent quarters. collectively contributed to strong
business results in 2024,

The value of newly signed contracts during the year reached 172,001 million VND.
cquivalent to 125.8% of the ycar plan, cquivalent to 143.1% ycar-over-year. The
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cumulative value of signed contracts reached 187,427 million VND, equivalent to 137%
of the yecar plan. The delivered value reached 158,894 million VND. equivalent to
116.2% of the year plan and 134.1% ycar-over-year. The contract signing and
fulfillment values in non-Petrolimex sectors significantly exceeded targets, primarily
driven by the deployment of Egas solutions, ERP systems, and Warchouse automation
for external customers. Specifically, the value of non-Petrolimex sectors reached 43,287
million VND (accounting for 27.3% of revenuc), equivalent to ~211.2% of the year plan
and 288.7% ycar-over-year. In which, export revenue reached 3,929 million VND (Laos
market), representing 228.6% growth compared to 2023.

3. Other activities

Technical, technological and product activities: The Company has focused on
investing in and upgrading its core products to gradually replace outdated technologics
that have been over 10 years old, enhancing both utility and customer experience:
Completed the upgrade of Iigas software according to new architecturc and technology:
Standardised and optimized the PIACOM ERP version for distribution [ranchisces:
Standardised the Petroleum Warchouse Automation product in the form of leasing
service: Finalised and commercialised new technology applications, including Mobile,
BI. RFID, and dynamic QR code payment solutions; Currently developing Al
technology integration into the Company’s products to boost competitiveness and meet
market and customer demands.

Investment activities: In 2024, for the first time in recent years, the Company has
exceeded the investment plan, although the investment value is still modest at 6.888
million VND, cquivalent to 172.2% of the 2024 plan, and more than 5 times higher than
2023. The Company continued to prioritize investment as a key driver for long-term
competitiveness and growth, including investing in developing new products, upgrading
existing products and cquipping information technology infrastructure. In 2024, the
Company has implemented the following activitics:

- Product investment: Completed the feasibility study and submit for investment
approval, coordinatc with partners to implement the project "Developing second-
generation Enterprise Gas Station Management Software (EGAS-II) and enterprisc
resource planning system (ERP-II)". By the end of the year, 70% of the product
technology foundation has been completed.

- Deployed the procurement of information technology infrastructure systems to
cnsure operational stability, data sccurity, and cybersecurity for both the Company and
its customers, including: Firewall cquipment, servers, load-balancing equipment.
network storage equipment, etc.

Marketing activities: Marketing cfforts continued to promote PIACOM products,
with a strong focus on advertising, branding and product content development across
media channels: Participate in conferences and events with VINPA, customer seminars.
Tax Departments training workshops nationwide, weekly solution showcases for
clectronic invoicing compliance. cte. Developed digital sales channel. The current
investment in marketing activitics is quite modest, both in terms of budget and human
resources. Regarding media communication, Marketing activities has enhanced brand
visibility and product awareness among target customers. In upcoming years, the
Company needs to increase Marketing budget and promote this activity.
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- Digital transformation, I'T application: Ensured stable and secure operations ol
IT infrastructure system, I'T equipment system, and I'T" application system throughout
the Company. Implemented redundant Cloud infrastructure and backup solutions for the
non-Petrolimex IEgas system; Cybersecurity plan for PIACOM's I'T systems: Complcte
upgrade of the management reporting system on the Company’s inhouse information
system (PIIS). Information security has been methodically implemented, with the
establishment of the Information Security Department, and the re-planning of
information security policies for IT systems used at PIACOM. Prepared incident
response plans to minimize downtime such as: implementing data breach simulation
drills. ensuring infrastructure for DR & Backup systems, developing information
sccurity inspection plans, implementing daily encrypted backup procedures against
ransomwarc attacks. Implemented project management systems. CRM  customer
demand management, and other internal management applications.

4. Development plan in 2025
4.1. Key objectives for 2025:

Balancing market economic conditions with the Company’s current resources and
production capacity. business objectives in 2025 are as follows:

- Sales revenue: 176,000 million VND, an increasc of 10% compared to actual
performance in 2024;

- Profit before tax: 17,000 million VND;
- Dividend payout ratio: 12% per year:
- Average income: >23-25 million VND/person/month:
- Investment value: 12.500 million VND.
4.3. Key solutions:
e Marketing and sales organising activities:

- Enhance marketing efforts by continuing to increasc the budget for promotion
activitics aligned with targeted sales programs. Improve the effectivencess of online sales
channels. Implement the CRM system to enhance demand handling efficiency. customer
care for potential clients, and after-sales service. In 2025, sales effectiveness is required
to continue improving.

- Expand international markets: The goal for 2025 is to enter at Ieast one additional
international market beyond [Laos. The Company has alrcady taken initial cooperative
steps since the end of 2024 with Viettel and Advantech, planning to scll in the 14
countrics where Viettel operates. This approach is deemed suitable under current
conditions. Simultancously, expand automation projects for [Lao State I'ucl Corporation.
Ivaluate the potential for cooperation with AIDG Group. a Top 5 company in Laos.
regarding the development of petroleum management technology for the [ao
government.

- Domestic market: Continue to consolidate and strengthen relationships with
major and strategic customers such as Vietnam National Petroleum Group (Petrolimex).
its member petroleum companics, and joint-stock corporations within Petrolimex. large
non-Petrolimex customers like Hai Linh Company, Mipecorp, Petro Binh Minh, DKC,
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Tin Nghia, Saigon Petro, Petimex Dong Thap. DFC. STS, SFC, LSFC. Skypec. Bp
Castrol, and other major petroleum trading companics.

- Increase cfforts to explore market opportunitics outside Petrolimex, focusing on
offering commercialised products to key traders, distributors, and agencies/gencral
agencics.

- As lor automation: In 2025, a shift in business approach is needed by establishing
direct commercial relationships with major global brands such as Siemens, Honcywell.
Rockwell Automation. Endress+lauser, ctc., to receive strong support in terms of
commercial policies and technical assistance. This will enhance PIACOM’s
competitiveness across all large and small automation projects.

o Technical, technological and product-related activities:

Continue to plan and develop the product ccosystem on the basis of three technical
pillars which arc the Company’s strengths: Software, Automation, and System Services.
Concentrate resources on upgrading technological and technical platforms for key
products, promote investment in construction and commercialization of new products.

Invest in the development of technology products with sufficient robustness to
cnsure safety, sccurity, and user data protection. including collabouration with
cybersccurity organisations and partnerships with network security firms. Investment
activitics should follow a clear plan with specific key items. At the same time, enhance
internal human resources by recruiting new staff and improving the quality of current
personnel through cybersecurity training courses and subsequently to apply security
protocols cffectively.

Improve customer experience: Focus on improving the user interface (UI) and user
experience (UX) of the product/service to optimise satisfaction, efficiency, and case of
usc. This 1s an important factor that helps increase customer engagement with the
product and create a competitive advantage for the Company.

Software Services and ERP: Lifficiently allocate and utilise human resources.
I'ocus on retaining core personnel and employing scnior experts. IEnsure adequate
resources and quality for annual projects. Concentrate on building sccond-generation
I gas, sccond-generation ERP, Bl systems, TAS Warchouse Management Software, and
business/accounting software for small enterpriscs.

Automation: Strengthen promotion and demand handling for automation projects
(especially the ones in warchouse automation, station automation). Standardise products
in the form of lcasing services, commercialisc products that applied new technologies.
lixplore other automation ficlds with similar technologies such as power plants using
Siemens technology and manufacturing zones using Rockwell or Siemens technologies.
where PIACOM engincers are already familiar with.

System Services: Secure resources, and add senior experts with in-depth expertise
in Linux/Vmware, Network/Security; Ensure service quality for annual projects, ensure
the safety and security of systems for the Group and its clients. Aim to expand and
support the operation of more systems for joint-stock corporations like PA, PGAS, and
PLC.
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e Corporate governance activities:

Restructure, extend functions and tasks, and rename the Information Technology
Department to the Product Research and Development Department. a specialised
and independent unit separated from the project implementation tecam. The
establishment of an independent Product R&D department is a strategic step Lo ensure
that products arc developed in a structured, innovative manner, without being affected
by short-term pressures from business projects. Key objectives include:

Focus on research and development (R&D): Iinsurc products arc continuously
improved. meeting market trends and customer needs.

Drive innovation: Scparate from day-to-day business activities so that the tcam
can focus entirely on creativity.

Accelerate product development cycles: Reduce time from concept to finished
product.

Increase core value: Ensure the product becomes proprictary intellectual
property, differentiated from competitors.

Optimise Expertise: Bring togcther experts in design, technology. and market
research for more specialized and in-depth work.

Implementing a new production and project management model is an important
step to improve operational efficiency and ensure that projects and production processes
arc optimally managed: Incrcase productivity, reduce waste, optimize resources, and
ensure product quality. Strengthening control over project timelines, costs, and quality.
while improving communication and collabouration between tecams.

Fully implement the new salary mechanism using the 3P system according to
working position, personal competency and work performance based on monthly KPIs
to ensure income differentiation and incentivisation.

Implementing targeted training programs to improve workforce quality is a
strategic step to develop a workforce that aligns with business goals and practical
requirements. Specifically: Improving professional expertise. soft skills. and
management capabilitics of personncel; Creating a tcam of high-quality personnel that
meet production. business. and technological innovation demands: Improving work
cfficiency and the Company's competitiveness.

e [T application and Digital Transformation activities:

Continue to invest in the upgrade, expansion, and completion of PIACOM's
Management Information System, expanding modules for customer carc. contract
management, project management, human resources and payroll management. and Bl
reporting.

Organising the implementation of IT and digital transformation applications in
2025: Infrastructurc assurance strategies and information security measures for
PIACOM’s I'T systems; Complete upgrade of the management reporting system on PIIS.

Develop a human resource management information plan to support the
implementation of the 3P salary structure. in which the technical department will
develop an information system to record real-time project execution data. integrated into
PIIS. PIIS develops a 3P salary management plan according to the new regulations. In
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the 4th quarter of 2024, trial operation using Iixcel & Redmine, and in 2025 the 3P salary
management software will be deployed.

e [nvestment activities:

- Focus resources on investment activitics and the implementation of long-term,
strategic tasks for the next business period: Continue to invest in EGAS-II, ERP-II
projccts according to the approved I easibility Report in the first half of 2025; Invest in
petrolecum warchouse management product (TAS): Invest in new Al technology. invest
in safety and sccurity: Expand automation investment into new sectors; Invest in training
and developing human resources: Invest in and improve employee income.

- Invest in upgrading infrastructure systems and procurement of information
technology cquipment.

- Investment budget for 2025: 12,500 million VND.

e Corporate Culture:

Company culture plays a key role in shaping the behaviour of employees. not only
within the organisation but also in how they interact externally. A strong and consistent
culture can foster cohesion, incrcase work cfficiency and build a good image for the
Company. The impact of company culture on internal behavior includes: promoting
engagement and motivation; encouraging collabouration and open communication
which helps tecams work more efficiently. share knowledge and solve problems quickly:
encouraging creativity and experimentation, with employees willing to propose new
idcas. A culture that promotes transparency. responsibility, and cthics will motivatce
cmployees to act according to principles and reduces the risk of violations or
misconduct.

The way employees interacts with customers, partners, and thc community
directly reflects the company's cultural values and image.

The Company shall continue to maintain and develop its core values. creating
motivation and engagement for employees. It will focus on building customer trust in
choosing and using the company’s products and services. The Company will also
maintain regular and diverse internal communication channels and organise team-
building activities to strengthen employee engagement.

5. Explanation of the Board of Management regarding the auditor’s opinion: Nonc
6. Environmental and Social Responsibility Assessment Report
% Assessment of environmental indicators

The Company is always awarc of its responsibility toward the environment. The
Company has implemented various measurcs to optimise clectricity and water usage.
such as strengthening inspection and monitoring of clectricity and water consumption
in cach department/unit; Promoting awarencss campaigns to educate employees on the
government's clectricity and water conservation policies.

“» Assessment of labour-related issues

The Company is committed to ensuring both the material and spiritual well-being
of its employees. Employees are guarantecd stable ecmployment with an average
monthly income of 16 million VND/person. IFull compliance with mandatory insurance
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contributions, promptly scttling social insurance regimes and policics. sick lcave.
maternity leave, annual leave, holiday bonuses, salaries, and mid-shift meal allowances:
Employees are provided with protective gear and an improved working environment to
ensure occupational health and safety. Annual comprehensive health check-ups are
conducted, and work assignments are adjusted to match employees’ health conditions
and capabilitiecs. The Company also places a strong emphasis on professional
development and training.

The Company promotes sports and wellness activities by organising football and
tennis tournaments and participating in running and football competitions hosted by
Petrolimex and Petrolimex Group Construction & ‘Irading Corporation.

% Assessment of corporate social responsibility to the local community

In addition to business development, the company actively participates in [ire
prevention and safety initiatives, mutual support and charitable activities, including
donations to social organisations, and participates in voluntary blood donation
campaigns, as well as other local community activities.

IV. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS

1. Situation overview

The global economy continues to face risks and challenges. Domestically. the
government has made significant efforts to drive economic growth, attract forcign
investment, stabilize the macroeconomy, ensurc major balances. and control inflation at
an appropriate level. In the field of petroleum trading, enterprises and key petroleum
distributors are facing the dual challenge of complying with new government regulations

while also needing to innovate in order to remain competitive in the market. Several of

the Company’s major customers are still addressing pre-existing difficultics. The
Company continues to regard the Petrolimex market as the foundation for expanding and
developing both domestic and international markets.

2. Evaluation of the Board of Directors on the Board of Management’s
performance

The Company’s Board of Management has consistently adhered to the principles
of centralisation, democracy and hicrarchical management: Imphasize individual
proactivity and accountability within the lcadership tecam in directing and managing the
Company’s operations, while ensuring strong coordination and unity on critical matters.

The Director oversees all operations and is legally accountable to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders and the BOD for the Company's management and operational
results. The Vice Director of the Company actively organises and implements assigned
tasks. taking full responsibility for their respective arcas of oversight.

Regarding organisational management: the BOD has provided guidance and
dircction to ensure its operations align with business objectives: It has also led to the
review and restructuring of organisational units to better suit the Company's stratcgic
direction.

Under the leadership of the Director, the Board of Management has complied with
governance regulations, closely followed set goals and directives. and effectively
implemented the business plans assigned by the GMS and BOD.
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3. Orientation and tasks of the BOD
3.1. Major objectives for 2025:

- Sales revenue: 176.000 million VND. an increase of 10% compared to actual
performance in 2024;

- Profit before tax: 17.000 million VND;
- Dividend payout ratio: 12% per year;
- Average income: >23-25 million VND/person/month;
- Investment value: 12,500 million VND.
3.2. Solutions and orientation

The Board of Directors continues to closcly supervise and direct the Board of
Management to successfully implement the 2025 Annual GMS' Resolutions. Direct
guidelines and policies through specific resolutions to orient and promote production
and business activities, specifically:

e Solutions for market development:

Strengthen and enhance the Company's position as the pioneer provider of
Automation, I'T, and Digital Transformation solutions within Pectrolimex, while
expanding into non-Petrolimex markets. Broaden product and service offerings to
petrochemical sectors (lubricants, asphalt. chemicals), new energy, and renewable
cnergy scctors, while simultancously establishing, building, and developing foreign
markets and customers. Increasc the revenue share from non-core sectors and
international markets.

e Solutions for applying science and technology, innovation and digital
transformation:

IFocus resources on investment and collabouration with leading domestic and
international partners and experts to plan and develop core products aligned with
business scctors, market demands, and customer needs: Standardise and streamline
product operations according to Vietnamese and international standards: Apply
advanced science & technology (10T, Automation, BI, Big Data, Al. Cloud Computing.
Cybersccurity, etc.). Strengthen and enhance the market position of the Company’s
flagship product lines, including Iigas. PIACOM ERP, PTAS. Warchouse Automation.
FFactory Automation and I'T infrastructure services.

e Solutions for improving and enhancing corporate governance and operational
capabilities.

- Streamline and restructure the organisational and business models toward
lcancr, stronger, and morc effective operations, reducing redundant layers and
intermediarics to cut costs, boost productivity, and enhance business efficiency.
Develop new., data-driven business models to meet increasing market demands. cross-
border business expansion. and technological advancements while maximizing
corporate performance.

- Review. amend. supplement. and establish new mechanisms and policies to
incentivise and facilitate all company operations under new conditions. Liffectively
operate the ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System, 3P Salary System, KPI
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Framework, CCIF Competency Framework systems, and integrate modern management
tools into business opcrations.

- Enhance leadership and managerial capabilitics at all levels, develop core
personnel. industry-leading experts, and technical specialists. Prioritisc workforce
training aligned with the CCIFF Competency Framework and carcer development
roadmaps. Implement attractive retention and talent acquisition policics to cnsure a
high-quality, stable workforce supporting the Company’s growth objectives.

- Financial control and risk prevention: Develop financial and internal control
procedures to ensure transparency and minimise risks: Maintain cash flow balancce.
control costs and optimise profits; Develop risk management plans with preventive and
responsive measures.

- Comprehensively upgrade the ERP system, digital office system, digital
signature, data integration for management and operation of important stages: Work (low
management, Human resource management, Customer relationship management.
Project management, Customer support system and Supplicr management.

e Strengthen and develop corporate culture

- Continue preserving, building, and developing the Company's traditional and
positive culture: Professionalism, Civility, Innovation; Unity, and Aspiration for
Growth. PIACOM always upholds integrity, collaboration, responsibility, and a
customer-centric approach in all operations.

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. Board of Directors

a) Members and structure of the Board of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors as of December 3 1st, 2024. arc as follows:

e e e ks S . |
' s >osition at other |
No. Full name Position at the Company vesilo l-ot . -

companies

1 | Tran Ngoc Tuan Chairperson of the BOD

Member of the BOD:
Director

2 | Nguyen Van Quy

| Director of Golden Sun
'3 | Hoang Hai Duong | Member of the BOD Marketing  Joint ~ Stock
i Company

’L 4 | Nguyen Anh Toan | Member of the BOD

b) Subcommittees of the Board of Directors: Nonc
¢) Activities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has strictly adhered to collective decision-making
principles, operating based on majority consensus and assigning responsibilitics to
members according to their arcas of expertise. In addition to periodic meetings and
written consultations, the BOD regularly communicates with the Supervisory Board to
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asscss and oversce the execution of management duties of the BOM.

In 2024, the BOD has held 04 official meetings and conducted 07 rounds of
written consultations. The Board of Directors also convened 01 Annual General Meeting
of Sharcholders.

The directives, decisions, and strategic oricntations of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders have been cffectively implemented by the BOD: The resolutions and
decisions of the BOD have been implemented by the BOM and reported on the results.

The BOD has closcly monitored and supervised the activities of the BOM.,
promptly addressed issues arising under its jurisdiction in order to create favorable
conditions for the operating activitics of the BOM. The Chairman actively participates
in specialised committees/councils of technology, compensations and benefits.
emulation and commendation, and initiatives; as well as attending various technical
meetings in human resource management, digital transformation, and marketing, also
monthly briefings to work closely with the BOM, ensuring the timely identification and
resolution of challenges affecting the Company’s business and production activitics.

d) Activities of the BOD independent members: None

e) List of the BOD members with corporate governance certification
1. Mr. Tran Ngoc Tuan

Mr. Nguyen Van Quy

3. Mr. Nguyen Anh Toan

]

4. Mr. Hoang Hai Duong
2. Supervisory Board

a) Members and structure of the Supervisory Board

1. Ms. Dang Thi Hong Ha : Ilecad of the Supervisory Board

[§9]

Ms. Do Thuy Linh : Member of the Supervisory Board

3. Ms. Tran Thi Huong : Member of the Supervisory Board

b) Activities of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board has diligently performed its functions and dutics.,
supervising thc Company's management and operations in accordance with the
principles of objectivity and honcesty, based on the Company's Charter, the Resolution
of the General Meeting of Sharcholders (GMS), the Board of Directors (BOD), and
current legal regulations. In 2024, the Supervisory Board has implemented a number of
tasks as follows:

- Developed the 2024 inspection and supervision plan;
- Organised periodic meetings of the Supervisory Board:

- Members of the Supervisory Board have proactively fulfilled their assigned tasks
and periodically reported on their assigned ficlds:

- Members of the Supervisory Board have fully attended the BOD meetings and
contributed opinions on raised issucs:
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- The Head of the Supervisory Board has participated in monthly mecetings to
monitor business activities and critical tasks, providing timely feedback to the Board of
Directors;

- The Supervisory Board has conducted direct supervision of financial accounting,
labour and salary management, product investment, and business operations for S-month
and 11-month periods.

- Reviewed the 2024 Financial Statements and prepared relevant contents for the
2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders:

3. Transactions, remuneration and benefits of the BOD, BOM, and the
Supervisory Board

a) Salaries, bonuses, remuneration and benefits

(Unit: Million VND)

Sal.ary, bonuses,

Position Full name remuncration |
- and benefits
-C_hairpcrson of the B()l)ﬂm 'l‘raniédc_'_l_‘t-l_zin_ A S 1.104 |
VemberofheBOD |NawenAmTom | 156
M(:‘mb.cr orhe BO.D Nguyen Dinh Thanh 47.2
| (Dismissal on April 17th, 2024)

Memberofthe BOD | Hoang Ili Duong 1536,
| Lt A A ot il i O st
' Vice Director Tran Dang Dung 768
! Ilead 0!'_1f1(-:méupcx.'vi.s"(.)ry Board s I )_cmg Thi l[onglla 180 |
| Member of the Supervisory Board | Tran Thi Fuong | 72|
Member of the Supervisory Board | DoThuy Linh | ; |
{ Total 35224

b) Insider stock transactions (information disclosure is required as in Circular
96/2020-TT-BTC): None

¢) Contracts or transactions with insiders: Nonc
d) Assessment of corporate governance compliance

The Company was established as a joint-stock company in 2003, became a public
company 1n 2017, and had its shares listed on the IHanoi Stock Iixchange in 2019. The
Company's management and governance structure has been established and strictly
complies with the provisions of the Law on Enterprises, the LLaw on Securities and other
relevant legal regulations.

In addition to fully fulfilling its disclosure obligations in the sccuritics sector. the
Company's governance system is strictly controlled, ensuring transparcncy in the
management and operational activities of the BOD and BOM, which are subject to
careful supervision.
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VI. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Audit opinion
The 2024 financial statements are audited by CPA Vietnam Auditing Co., I.td.

Auditor's opinion: The interim financial statements fairly and accurately present.
in all material respects, the interim financial position of Petrolimex Information
Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company as of December 31st, 2024,
Additionally, the interim business performance and cash flows for the fiscal year ending
on the same date arc reported in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards
(VAS). the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, and relevant legal regulations
governing the preparation and presentation of interim financial statements.

2. Audited financial statements (Enclosed)./.

Hanoi, 08 April 2025

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

CONG TY
cO PHAN
TIN HOC VIEN Theies

GIAM DOC
Nguyén Viin Quy

A A Digitally signed by
CONG TY CO CONG TY CcO PHAN

PHAN TIN HOCTIN HOC VIEN

= A THONG PETROLIMEX
VIEN THONG Date: 2025.04.08

PETROLIMEX 17.48:03+0700

PETROLIMEN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
No. I Kham Thien, Dong Da, Hanoi, Vietnam T (024)3518-2072 F (024)3518-2067 W.www.PIACOM.com.vn
Office: 15th Floor, DETECH TOWER Building, No. 08C Ton That Thuyet, My Dinh 2, Nam Tu Liem, Hanoi, Vietnam Page 34




PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JOINT STOCK COMPANY

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31* December 2024

Ha Noi — March 2025




PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONTENTS

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet

Income Statement

Cash flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

10-36

»* S

~dnl



PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Petrolimex Information Technology And Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company presents this report together with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended
31* December 2024.

THE COMPANY

Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to
as the “the Company™) is a joint stock company that was transformed from the Information Technology and
Automation Center of the Vietnam National Petroleum Group. The Company was granted the Enterprise
Registration Certificate No. 0101409374 by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment for the time

on 23" September 2003, registration for changes made several times, and the most recent change was the g™
time on 27" July 2023.

Foreign company name: Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company.
Abbreviations company name: PIACOM., JSC.

The Company’s Charter capital under the Certificate of Business Registration changed for the 8" time on
27" Ju ly 2023 is VND 39,000,000,000 (/n Word: Thirty-nine billion dong).

The Company’s registered office is located at: No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi
City, Vietnam.

The company's trading office: 15" floor, Detech Tower building, 8C Ton That Thuyet Street, Nam Tu Liem District,
Hanoi City.

The Company’s stock is currently listed on the HNX Stock Exchange with stock code: PIA.
BOARDS OF MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISORS AND DIRECTORS

Members of Boards of Management, Supervisors and Directors who held the Company during the year and at
the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

Mr. Tran Ngoc Tuan Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Van Quy Member

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Thanh Member (Dismissed from 17/4/2024)
Mr. Hoang Hai Duong Member

Mr. Nguyen Anh Toan Member

Board of Supervisors

Mrs. Dang Thi Hong Ha Head of the Board
Mrs. Do Thuy Linh Member

Mrs. Tran Thi Huong Member

Board of Directors

Mr. Nguyen Van Quy Director

Mr. Tran Dang Dung Deputy Director
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the Board of Directors, in all material respects, there have been no other significant events
occurring after the balance sheet date, affecting the financial position and operation of the Company which
would require adjustments to or disclosures to be made in the financial statements for the year ended 31%
December 2024.




PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
AUDITORS

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31% December 2024 have been audited by CPA
VIETNAM Auditing Company limited - A Member Firm of INPACT.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for preparing a general financial report that honestly and
reasonably reflects the financial situation of the Company as of December 31%, 2024 as well as the results of
general business operations and financial situation. consolidated cash flow pattern for the fiscal year ending on
the same date, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the current Vietnamese corporate
accounting regime and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial
statements. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is required to:

e Select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently;
e Make judgments and estimates prudently;

e State clearly whether the Accounting Standards applied to the Corporation are followed or not, and all the
material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements or not;

* Design and implement effectively the internal control system in order to ensure that the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements are free from material misstatements due to frauds or errors;

* Prepare the Financial Statements of the Company on the going-concern basis, except for the cases that
the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to ensure that the financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Standards on Accounting, Vietnamese Accounting System and relevant
legal regulations in preparation and presentation of the financial statements. The Board of Directors is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Director confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
financial statement.

CONG TY
cO PHAN

Nguyen Van Quy
Director
Hanoi, 10" March 2025
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CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

Head Office in Hanoi:
8" floor, VG Building, No. 235 Nguyen Trai Str.,

Thanh Xuan Dist., Hanoi, Vietnam | N PA C T
@ +84(24) 3783 2121 @ info@cpavietnam.vn & Aok B

# +84 (24) 3783 2122 B www.cpavietnam.vn
No: 136/2025/BCKT-CPA VIETNAM-NV2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Shareholders
Boards of Management, Supervisors and Directors
Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Petrolimex Information Technology and
Telecommunication Joint Stock Company as set out on pages 06 to page 36, prepared on 10/3/2025, including
the Balance sheet as at 31/12/2024, and the Income Statement, and Cash flows Statement for the year then
ended, and Notes to the financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the true and fair preparation and presentation of these
financial statements in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System
and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, and for
the internal control as the Board of General Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. These Standards require us to comply with the Standards and
codes of ethics, to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the Company's separate
financial statements are there any significant errors or not

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The audit procedures are selected based on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of risks of
material misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design appropriate audit procedures to the actual situation, which is not intended to give an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. .




CPAVIETNAM

Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements gives a true and fair view of, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31* December 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year ended 31% December 2024 in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the financial
statements in Vietnam.

Nguyen Thi Mai Hoa Nguyen Thi Tien

Deputy General Director Auditor

Certificate of registration of auditing practice Certificate of registration of auditing practice
No: 2326-2023-137-1 No: 5276-2021-137-1

Authorised No: 08/2024/UQ-CPA VIETNAM dated 02/01/2024 of Chairman

For and on behalf of

CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

A member firm of INPACT

Hanoi, 10" March 2025




PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Form B 01 - DN
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam 22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31" December 2024
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
ASSETS Code Note VND VND
CURRENT ASSETS
- 100 86,888,587,524 83,992,842,195
A (100=110+120+130+140+150) : e B
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 5.1 25,269,180,330 24,710,865,723
1. Cash 111 10,135,572,930 3,986,759,295
2. Cash equivalents 112 15,133,607.400 20,724,106,428
II. Short-term financial investments 120 3,236,494,035 7,539,905,022
3. Held to maturity Investments 123 5.2 3,236,494,035 7,539,905,022
III. Short-term receivables 130 46,909,061,211 41,208,213,280
1. Short-term receivables from customers 131 53 46,390,390,448 40,826,855,159
2.  Short-term repayments to suppliers 132 54 1,259,513,952 396,984,262
6. Other short-term receivables 136 5.5 1,596.,646,390 2,036,315,590
7.  Short-term allowances for doubtful debts 137 5.6 (2,337,489,579) (2,051,941,731)
IV. Inventories 140 8,314,457,508 9,414,655,410
1. Inventories 141 57 8,314,457,508 9,414,655,410
V. Other current assets 150 3,159,394,440 1,119,202,760
1.  Short-term prepaid expenses 151 5.8 3,159,394,440 1,119,202,760
LONG-TERM ASSETS
B- (200=210+220+240+250+260) 200 14,227,478,840 10,436,221,567
I. Long-term receivables 210 589,190,000 600,333,073
6.  Other long-term receivables 216 5.5 589,190,000 600,333,073
II. Fixed assets 220 4,131,465,827 2,190,938,064
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 5.9 4,131,465,827 2,152,640,496
- Historical costs 222 18,980,907,973 15,509,924,974
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (14,849,442,146) (13,357,284,478)
3. Intangible fixed assets 227 5.10 g 38,297,568
- Historical costs 228 1,654,405,900 1,654,405,900
- Accumulated amortization 229 (1,654,405,900) (1,616,108,332)
IV. Long-term assets in progress 240 3,359,511,363 1,759,110,000
2. Construction in progress 242 5.1 3,359,511,363 1,759,110,000
V1. Other long-term assets 260 6,147,311,650 5,885,840,430
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 5.8 6,147,311,650 5,885,840,430
TOLAL ASHERS 270 101,116,066,36 94,429,063,76
(270 = 100+200) +H16,000,564 A9 D63,762
6




PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY . AL 2
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC o
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
District, Hanoi City, Vietham 22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance
BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
As at 31* December 2024
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
RESOURCES Code Note VYND VND
C- LIABILITIES (300=310+330) 300 28,388,396,181 25,207,597,112
I.  Short-term liabilities 310 28,268,396,181 25,087,597,112
1.  Short-term trade payables 311 5.12 16,484,618,483 14,799,080,121
2. Short-term prepayments from customers 312 568,278,594 1,521,030,400
j; BRSOl PRk 1 313 513 2,889,024,478 2,934,643,754
government budget
4. Payables to employees 314 5,212,962,756 1,243,610,000
8. Short-term unearned revenues 318 661,533,867 155,696,272
9.  Other short-term payments 319 5.14 562,611,729 439,593,108
11. Short-term provisions 321 5.15 185,722,331 105,499,514
12. Bonus and welfare fund 322 1,703,643,943 3,888,443,943
II. Long-term liabilities 330 120,000,000 120,000,000
7.  Other long-term payables 337 514 120,000,000 120,000,000
D- OWNERS’ EQUITY 400 72,727,670,183 69,221,466,650
(400 = 410+430)
I- Owners’ equity 410 5.16 72,727,670,183 69,221,466,650
1. Contributed capital 411 39,000,000,000 39,000,000,000
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 41la 39,000,000,000 39,000,000,000
7. Development and investment funds 418 17,498,214,164 16,181,814,164
10. Undistributed profit after tax 421 16,229,456,019 14,039,652,486
Undistributed profit after tax
- brouchs Tred 421a 2,240,952,486 875,278,529
Undistributed profit after tax ' :
H fivikecumentvear 421b 13,988,503..533 13,164,373,957 *
3
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ ¥
EQUITY (440 = 300+400) 440 101,116,066,364 94,429,063,762
i, 10" March 2025
Prepare Chief Accountant tor
CO_NG TY
cO PHAN
Nguyen Khanh Linh Cao Thi Hong Van : _”_D?éuyen Van Quy
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PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC

No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Form B 02 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31* December 2024
In 2024 In 2023
ITEMS Code Note VND VND
1. Revenues from sales and services rendered 01 6.1 158,894,205,729 118,714,157,275
2. Revenue deductions 02 6.1 - 242,810,000
g, Denovemesiommisandaeionrdeel o 5 158,804,205,729  118,471,347,275
(10=01-02)
4. Costs of goods sold 11 6.2 100,660,131,889 64,446,218,375
Gross revenues from sales
5. and sexvioes resdored (20 =10:11) 20 58,234,073,840 54,025,128,900
6. Financial income 21 6.3 1,040,307,553 1,041,814,237
Financial expenses 22 6.4 38,212,048 11,269,898
In which: interest expenses 23 - -
8. Selling expenses 25 6.5 40,476,752,783 38,466,352,017
9. General administrative expenses 26 - -
Net profits from operating activities
10. (30 = 20+(21-22)-(25426)} 30 18,759,416,562 16,589,321,222
11. Other income 31 6.6 79,141,040 40,290,093
12. Other expenses 32 6.6 458,125,275 527,895
13. Other profits (40 = 31-32) 40 (378,984,235) 39,762,198
Total net profit before tax
14. (50 = 30+40+45) 50 18,380,432,327 16,629,083,420
15. Current corporate income tax expenses 51 6.7 4,391,928,794 3,464,709,463 6
16. Deferred corporate income tax expenses 52 - - 7
Profits after corporate
17. income tax (60 = 50-51-52) 60 13,988,503,533 13,164,373,957 w
14
18. Basic earnings per share 70 6.8 3,587 2,688 Q
i, 10" March 2025
Prepare Chief Accountant i

y 2

Nguyen Khanh Linh

G

Cao Thi Hong Van

Nguyen Van Quy




PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da

Form B 03 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

District, Hanoi City, Vietnam
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the year ended 31* December 2024
In 2024 In 2023
ITEMS Code Note VND VND
I. Cash flows from operating activities '
1. Profit before tax 01 18,380,432,327 16,629,083,420
2. Adjustments for
- Depreleatlon of fixed assets and investment 02 1.576.637,055 1,446,587,415
properties
- Provisions 03 365,770,665 2,005,449,438
- Unreahz.ed. gains and losses from foreign exchange 04 (83.673.272) 1,012,410
rate fluctuations
- Gains (losses) on investing activities 05 (944,137,266) (1,003,018,261)
G Bty e s o ore NGRS 08 19,295,029,509 19,079,114,422
working capital
- Increase (decrease) in receivables 09 (5,951,197,318) 2,819,896,664
- Increase (decrease) in inventories 10 1,100,197,902 2,375,697,670
- Increase (decrease) in payables 11 5,337,778,165 (4,233,142,378)
- Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses 12 (3,902,064,263) 2,957,845,091
- Enterprise income tax paid 15 (4,444,330,707) (3,678,822,223)
- Other payments on operating activities 17 (4,867,100,000) (4,102,902,000)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 6,568,313,288 15,217,687.246
II. Cash flows from investing activities
1 Expenditures on purchase and construction of fixed 21 (3,517,164.818) (1,067,022,686
" assets and long-term assets AR Rt IV EN080)
5 Proceeds from disposal or transfer of fixed assets and 2 181.818 200.000
" other long-term assets 4 *
Money spent on loans, buying debt
3. insmingm i 23 (206,951,099) (4,427,299,053)
4 Expenditures on loans and purchase of debt 24 4.510.362.086 1.036.555.223
instruments from other entities i BT
. Proceeds from interests, dividends and 27 943.955.448 1.002.818.261
" distributed profits RS Pl
Net cash flows from investing activities 30 1,730,383,435 (3,454,748,255)
I11. Cash flows from financial activities
6. Dividends and profits paid to owners 36 (7,800,000,000) (7,800,000,000)
Net cash flows from financial activities 40 (7,800,000,000) (7,800,000,000)
Net cash flows during the period (50 = 20+30+40) 50 498,696,723 3,962,938,991
Cash and cash equivalents at the 60 24.710.865.723 20.748.939.142
beginning of the period sl MRS
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 61 59,617,884 (1,012,410)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
70 25,269,180,330 24,710,865,723

of the period (70 = 50+60+61)

Prepare Chief Accountant
M2 ap
W //
Nguyen Khanh Linh Cao Thi Hong Van
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PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC Form B 09 - DN
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31® December 2024

1.

1.5

1.2.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Structure of ownership

Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock Company is a joint stock
company that was transformed from the Information Technology and Automation Center of the
Vietnam National Petroleum Group. The Company was granted the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0101409374 by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment for the time on
23rd September 2003, registration for changes made several times, and the most recent change was
the 8th time on 27th July 2023.

Foreign company name: Petrolimex Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint Stock
Company.

Abbreviations company name: PIACOM., JSC.

The Company’s Charter capital under the Certificate of Business Registration changed for the 8th
time on 27th July 2023 is VND 39,000,000,000 (In Word: Thirty-nine billion dong).

The Company’s registered office is located at: No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

The company's trading office: 15th floor, Detech Tower building, 8C Ton That Thuyet Street, Nam
Tu Liem District, Hanoi City.
The Company’s stock is currently listed on the HNX Stock Exchange with stock code: PIA.

The total number of the Company’s employees as at 31st December 2024 is 124 employees (As at
31st December 2023 is 124 employees).

Operating industries and principle activities

Manufacturing of computers and computer peripherals (Details: Computer manufacturing,
Automation equipment manufacturing);

Other telecommunications activities (Details: Network establishment and provision of Internet services
(IAP, ISP), Providing (directly, reselling) telecommunications services (basic, value-added));

Computer programming (Details: Software production);

Computer consulting and computer system administration (Details: Software consulting);

Repair of electronic and optical equipment (Details: Maintenance and repair of computers, software,
peripherals, electronic devices, computers, automation equipment, and industrial production lines);

Installation of industrial machinery and equipment (Details: Installation of computers, software,
peripherals, electronic devices, computers, automation equipment, and industrial production lines);

Wholesale of computers, peripherals, and software (Details: Supply of software, buying and selling
computers, software, peripherals, electronic devices, computers, automation equipment, and
industrial production lines);

Wholesale of electronic components and telecommunications equipment (Details: Trading of
materials, postal and telecommunications equipment, measuring and control equipment, automation
equipment, electrical equipment, electronic components);

Main business activities of the year: Software supply; Buying and selling computers, software,
peripherals, electronic devices, computers, automation equipment, and industrial production lines;
Maintenance and repair of computers, software, peripherals, electronic devices, computers,
automation equipment, and industrial production lines; Software production; Software consulting;
Wholesale of electronic components and telecommunications equipment.

10



PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC Form B 09 - DN
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31¥ December 2024

1.3

1.4

1.5

3.2

Normal operating cycle

The Company’s normal operating cycle is 12 months.

The Company structure

As at 31¥ December 2024, the Company has dependent units as follows:

Name Address Major business lines

Southern Branch - 209 Hoang Van Software supply; Buying and selling computers,
Petrolimex Thu - Ward 08 - software, peripherals, electronic devices, computers,
Information Phu Nhuan automation equipment, and industrial production lines;
Technology and District - Ho Chi Maintenance and repair of computers, software,
Telecommunication ~ Minh City peripherals, electronic devices, computers, automation
Joint Stock Company equipment, and industrial production lines;

Statement of information comparability on the financial statements

The Board of Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and
System, which were issued together with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 and
Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC on amending and supplementing a number of articles of Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance. Therefore, the information
and figures presented in the financial statements are comparable.

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY
Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its financial statements starts on 1% January
and ends on 31¥ December of the solar year.

Accounting currency

The accompanying financial statements are expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND).
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Company applied to Vietnamese Accounting System promulgated under Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22™ December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance and Circular No.
53/2016/TT- BTC dated 21" March 2016 amending and supplementing a number of articles of
Circular 200/2014/TT- BTC dated 22" December 2014.

Statements for the compliance with Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and System, which were issued to guide the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements for the year ended 31¥ December 2024.

b |



PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC Form B 09 - DN
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam 22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Below are the major accounting policies adopted by the Company in the preparation of the
financial statements:

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The attached financial statements are expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND), under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting
System and legal regulations relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

The accompanying financial statements include the financial statements of the Company's Head
Office and its subsidiary, Southern Branch - Information Technology and Telecommunication Joint
Stock Company. All transactions and balances between the Company's Head Office and Southern
Branch have been eliminated when preparing and presenting the Company’s financial statements.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Accounting Policy for Enterprises, and related legal provisions regarding the preparation
and presentation of financial statements requires the Board of Directors to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the fiscal year. Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Foreign exchange rates applied in accounting

Foreign currency transactions are converted at the actual exchange rate on the transaction date. The
balances of foreign currency items at the end of the financial year are revalued at the actual
exchange rate on that date. The exchange rate difference is recorded in the comprehensive income
statement. The exchange gain or loss resulting from the revaluation of foreign currency balances at
the end of the financial year is not used to distribute dividends to shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, bank deposits.

Cash equivalents comprise short-term deposits and highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of less than 3 months that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial investments
Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are those that the Company has intention and ability to hold until
maturity. Held to maturity investments include bank deposits with original maturities of more than 3
months.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at cost less allowance. Allowance of held-to-maturity
investments is made in conformity with current accounting regulations.

Receivables

The receivables comprise the customer receivables and other receivables. Receivables are
recognized at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.

Allowance for doubtful debts is assessed and made for overdue receivables that are difficult to be
collected, or the debtor is unable to pay due to dissolution, bankruptcy or similar difficulties.
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PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC Form B 09 - DN
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam 22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprise
costs of direct materials, direct labor, and general operation (if any) incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and conditions. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price of inventory items less all estimated costs of completion and costs of marketing, selling and
distribution. The Company uses the perpetual inventory method.

The Company’s allowance for impairment of inventories is made when there is reliable evidence of
impairment of the net realizable value compared to the historical cost of inventories.

Tangible fixed assets and Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at history cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical costs of
tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Company to bring the asset to its working
condition for its intended use.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Time details are as follows:

Years
Machinery and equipment 03 -07
Office equipment 03 -05
Motor vehicles 06 - 07

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, then any gain or loss arising from such disposal is included in the income or the expenses
during the year.

Intangible fixed assets and Amortization

Intangible fixed assets represent the value of computer software and are reflected at cost, presented
at historical cost minus accumulated amortization

Historical costs of intangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Company to bring the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.

[ S Sl %

The intangible fixed assets are computer software that is amortized over a period of 3 to 5 years.
Construction in progress

Construction in progress reflects the Properties in progress for production, leasing, administrative
purposes, or for any other purposes are recognized at the historical cost. This cost includes salaries,
service costs, and other related expenses in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses arising but relevant to financial performance in several
accounting periods. The Company’s prepaid expenses include office rental expenses, tools and
equipment expenses, repair expenses and other waiting-for-allocation expenses.

Tools and supplies are recorded to expenses and depreciated to on a straight-line basis with useful
life of not exceeding 36 months.

The repair expenses and other waiting-to-be-allocated costs are allocated to expenses using the
straight-line method for a period of no more than 36 months.
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PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC Form B 09 - DN
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam 22™ December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Payables

The account payables are monitored in detail by payable terms, payable parties, original currency
and other factors depending on the Company’s management requirement.

The account payables include payables as trade payables, loans payable, intercompany payable between the
Company's Office and its subsidiary, Southem Branch - Petrolimex Information Technology and
Telecommunication Joint Stock Company, and other payable which are determined almost certainly about the
recorded value and term, which is not carried less than amount to be paid. They are classified as follows:

» Trade payables: reflect payables of commercial nature arising from the purchase of goods,
services, or assets between the Company and seller.

 Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of
goods or provisions of services.

Provisions for payables

The recognized amount of a provision for payables is the best estimate of the amount that will be
required to settle the present obligation as at the fiscal year end date or balance sheet date .

Only expenses related to the provision for payables made initially will be offset by such provision.

When the difference between the provision for payables made in the previous accounting period that
has not yet been used up is larger than the provision for payables made in the reporting period, it
shall be reversed and recorded as a decrease in production and business expenses in the period,
excluding the larger difference of the provision payables for warranty of construction works
reversed into other income in the period.

The Company's provisions for payables include reserves for product warranties, construction
warranties, and salary reserves. .

Owners’ equity
Capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by the owner.

Undistributed profit is determined based on the post-tax business results and profit distribution of
the enterprise.

Profit after corporate income tax is distributed to shareholders after setting up funds in accordance
with the Company's Charter as well as the provisions of law and approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Dividends are recognized as a liability when approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
Revenue and other income

The Company's revenue includes revenue from the sale of goods, equipment, and revenue from the
provision of services and software.

Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods shall be recognized when it satisfies all the five (5) conditions below:
e The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and reward of ownership of the goods;

e The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and

e Costs related to transactions can be determined.
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PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC Form B 09 - DN
No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINU ED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contin ued)
Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from services

Revenue from services is recognized when the outcome of that transaction can be reliably
determined. Where a transaction involving the rendering of services is attributable to several
periods, revenue is recognized in the year by reference to the percentage of completion of the
transaction at the balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction can be measured
reliably when all four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

® The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;

e Identify the completed work as at the balance sheet date; and

e Determine the costs incurred for the transaction as well as the cost to complete the transaction to provide
that service.

Revenue from interest income, dividends and profits received and other income:

The revenue is recognized when the Company can obtain economic benefits from the above activities
and when it is reliably measured.

Cost of goods sold
This includes the cost of goods sold, services recognized in accordance with revenue in the year.
Current corporate income tax expense and deferred corporate income tax expense

Corporate income tax expenses (or corporate income tax income): is total current and deferred
income tax expenses (or total current and deferred tax) in determining profit or loss of a period.

*  Current income tax expenses: are corporate income tax payable calculated on taxable profit
during the year and current corporate income tax rate. Current income tax is calculated on
taxable income and applicable tax rate during the tax period. Difference between taxable
income and accounting profit is from adjustment of differences between accounting profit and
taxable income in accordance with current tax policies.

The Company has an obligation to pay corporate income tax at the rate of 20% on taxable profits.

The determination of the Company's income tax is based on current tax regulations. However, these
regulations change from time to time and the final determination of corporate income tax depends on
the examination results of the competent tax authorities.

Earnings per shares

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit (loss) after tax for the year attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Related parties

A party is considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is able to control the
Corporation or to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the
Corporation. A party is also considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is under
the same control or is subject to the same material effects.

When considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of the relationship is focused more
than its legal form.
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No. 1, Kham Thien, Kham Thien Ward, Dong Da
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam

Form B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

22" December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in
manufacturing or providing products or related services (by business segment) or in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical area) which is subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. The Board of Directors confirms
that the Company operates in business segments of electricity trading, construction and installation,
other activities in a single geographical segment - Vietnam. Therefore, the segment report will be
prepared by business segments.

h

5.1.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Bank deposits
Cash equivalents

- Term deposits under 3 months (*)

Total

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO ITEMS DISCLOSED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
796,052,470 98,534,224
9,339,520,460 3,888,225,071

15,133,607,400
15,133,607,400

20,724,106,428
20,724,106,428

25,269,180,330

24,710,865,723

(*) I-month term deposits at Prosperity and Growth Commercial Joint Stock Bank with interest rate of

3.0%/year.

5.2.  Held to maturity investments

Short-term

- Term deposits (*)

Total

01/01/2024 (VND)

31/12/2024 (VND)

Original cost Book value Original cost Book value
3,236,494,035 3,236,494,035 7,539,905,022 7,539,905,022
3,236,494,035 3,236,494,035 7,539,905,022 7,539,905,022
3,236,494,035 3,236,494,035 7,539,905,022 7,539,905,022

Deposits have a term of 06 months at Prosperity and Growth Commercial Joint Stock Bank with an interest

rate of 3.6%/year
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Form B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
22™ December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31% December 2024

5.3. Receivables from customers
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 46,390,390,448 40,826,855,159
Vietnam National Petroleum Group 17,988,544,756 9,218,658,328
Cai Mep International Terminal Joint Stock Company 1,979,425,181 5,166,910,652
Petrolimex Saigon Co., Ltd 1,895,446,240 5,784,820,341
Others 24,526,974,271 20,656,465,838
Total 46,390,390,448 40,826,855,159
In which:
Receivables from related parties 28,736,801,638 24,769,030,847
(Details in Note 7.1)
5.4. Repayments to suppliers
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 1,259,513,952 396,984,262
B4U Joint Stock Company 379,000,000 -
Servo Dynamics - 72,231,390
Technova Company Limited 39,277,500 59,530,000
Brainmark Vietnam Corporation - 154,334,160
Mr. Nguyen Van Thang 157,590,000 -
Others 683,646,452 110,888,712
Total 1,259,513,952 396,984,262
In which:
Repayments to related parties 25,000,000 -
(Details in Note 7.1)
5.5. Other short-term, and long-term receivables
31/12/2024 (VND) 01/01/2024 (VND)
Book value Provision Book value Provision
Short-term 1,596,646,390 - 2,036,315,590 -
- Advances 557,104,593 - 505,200,000 -
- Deposits - - 1,800,000 -
- Other receivables 1,039,541,797 - 1,529,315,590 -
Long-term 589,190,000 - 600,333,073 -
- Deposits 589,190,000 - 600,333,073 -
Total 2,185,836,390 - 2,636,648,663 -
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

5.6.  Bad debts

Form B 09 - DN

31/12/2024 (VND) 01/01/2024 (VND)
Recoverable
Origiual value Allowances Recoverable amount Og‘gigll value Allowances amount
- Receivables fro
cmﬁi - 4,585,350,579 (2,337,489,579) 2,247,861,000 7,878,106,270 (2,051,941,731)  5,826,164,539
Total 4,585,350,579 (2,337,489,579) 2,247,861,000 7,878,106,270 (2,051,941,731)  5,826,164,539

Details of the overdue period are as follows:

Overdue more than Overdue more than Overdue more  Exceeded the
6 months but less 1 year but less than 2 year but upper limit
than 1 year than 2 years  less than 3 years of 3 years Total
VND VND VND VND VND
Cai Mep Terminal Joint Stock Company 1,789,744,561 - | - - 1,789,744,561
Toan Thinh Petroleum Trading Single-
member limited liability company g LA : - 31,750,000
Dai Hoang Phuc Investment and
Development Company Limited . i A6 R
Nam Song Hau Trading Investing
Putrubonts M S Gty . 8 846,392,191 - 846,392,191
Nam Song Hau Go Cong Bonded
Warehouse And Petroleum Trading JSC i i Lassael = HiRl
Total 1,789,744,561 31,790,000 2,763,816,018 - 4,585350,579
5.7. Inventories
31/12/2024 (VND) 01/01/2024 (VND)
Recoverable Recoverable
e Original value amount Original value amount
Raw material expenses 4,870,181,012 - 6,563,309,623 -
“Tools and supplies 320,005,000 - - -
Work in progress 1,818,671,715 - 2,680,535,492 -
Finished goods 1,023,650,932 - 99,890,681 -
Goods 281,948,849 - 70,919,614 -
Total 8,314,457,508 - 9,414,655,410 -

18

o //

AT T A



PETROLIMEX INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND TELECOMMUNICATION JSC
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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5.8.  Short-term, and long-term prepaid expenses

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 3,159,394,440 1,119,202,760
Office rental expenses 1,623,722,636 965,106,817
Tools and supplies expenses 73,979,659 77,123,152
Others 1,461,692,145 76,972,791
Long-term 6,147,311,650 5,885,840,430
Office rental expenses - 67,512,000
Tools and supplies expenses 1,655,112,109 256,837,466
PIACOM - ERP (Nuclos) software project expenses 2,219,210,963 3,199,430,550
EGAS business upgrade project expenses - 287,954,524
Windows Server 2022 application software costs 49,083,320 -
Project costs for upgrading gasoline station management
software (EGAS2) 1,036,341,656 -
Investment project costs for upgrading EGAS 2022 215,250,000 387,450,000
Investment project costs for upgrading AGAS 381,973,485 687,552,273
Cons.tructlon mvestment project costs 390,624,972 703,124,988
Mobile App - Customers
Others 199,715,145 295,978,629
Total 9,306,706,090 7,005,043,190
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINU ED)
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5.9.  Tangible fixed assets

HISTORY COST
As at 01/01/2024

Increase
Purchase
Reclassify
Decrease
Disposal
Reclassify

As at 31/12/2024

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at 01/01/2024

Increase
Depreciation
Reclassify
Decrease
Disposal
Reclassify

As at 31/12/2024
NET BOOK VALUE
As at 01/01/2024
As at 31/12/2024

Unit: VND

Machinery, Transportation
equipment means _ Office equipment Total
8,417,652,157 5,356,345,909 1,735,926,908 15,509,924,974
3,612,263,000 - 49,081,818 3,661,344,818
3,468,083,000 - 49,081,818 3,517,164,818
144,180,000 - - 144,180,000
- - 190,361,819 190,361,819
- - 46,181,819 46,181,819
- - 144,180,000 144,180,000
12,029,915,157 5,356,345,909 1,594,646,907 18,980,907,973
6,828,866,707 4,885,848,966 1,642,568,805 13,357,284,478
1,113,931,744 470,496,943 98,090,800 1,682,519,487
969,751,744 470,496,943 98,090,800 1,538,339,487
144,180,000 - - 144,180,000
- - 190,361,819 190,361,819
- - 46,181,819 46,181,819
- B 144,180,000 144,180,000
7,942,798,451 5,356,345,909 1,550,297,786 14,849,442,146
1,588,785,450 470,496,943 93,358,103 2,152,640,496
4,087,116,706 - 44,349,121 4,131,465,827

History cost of tangible fixed assets which are fully depreciated but still in use as at 31% December 2024 is

13,728,359,869 VND (As at 31% December 2023 is 9,298,121,779 VND).
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5.10. Intangible fixed assets

HISTORY COST
As at 01/01/2024
Increase

Decrease
As at 31/12/2024

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

As at 01/01/2024
Increase
Amortization
Decrease

As at 31/12/2024
NET BOOK VALUE
As at 01/01/2024

As at 31/12/2024

Unit: VND

Technology software Total
1,654,405,900 1,654,405,900
1,654,405,90{; 1,654,405,90(;
1,616,108,332 1,616,108,332
38,297,568 38,297,568
38,297,568 38,297,568
1,654,405,901; 1,654,405,906
38,297,568 38,297,568

The historical cost of intangible fixed assets which have been fully amortized but still in use as at December

31%,2024 is 1,654,405,900 VND (as at December 31% 2023 is 1,410,350,000 VND).

5.11.  Construction in progress

Long-term

Project: "Automation using Y okogawa
technology platform"

EGAS-II Software Construction
Project

Building a BI smart management
reporting system
Others

Total

31/12/2024 (VND) 01/01/2024 (VND)
Recoverable Recoverable
Original value amount Original value amount
3,359,511,363 3,359,511,363 1,759,110,000 1,759,110,000
= - 515,500,000 515,500,000
3,086,784,090 3,086,784,090 -
— - 333,500,000 333,500,000
272,727,273 272,727,273 910,110,000 910,110,000
3,359,511,363 3,359,511,363 1,759,110,000 1,759,110,000
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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5.12 Trade payables

Short-term

Ecome Trading And Technology
Technical Joint Stock Company

Thien Quang Digital technology Joint
Stock Company

MBSOFT Vietnam Technology
Trading and Services Company Limited

D28 Software Joint Stock Company

Tinh Van Technology
Joint Stock Company

Others
Total

In which:
Trade payables from related parties
(Details in Note 7.1)

5.13  Taxes and other payables to government budget

Payables
VAT

Import-export tax
Corporate income tax

Personal income tax

License fees
Fees, charges and other payables

Unit: VND
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Repayable Repayable

Book value amount Book value amount
16,484,618,483 16,484,618,483 14,799,080,121 14,799,080,121
2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000 3,248,746,942 3,248,746,942
1,260,400,000 1,260,400,000 1,795,400,000 1,795,400,000
1,739,645,500 1,739,645,500 1,727,546,900 1,727,546,900
3,069,730,200 3,069,730,200 851,788,200 851,788,200
2,652,316.,800 2,652,316,800 - -
5,262,525,983 5,262,525,983 7,175,598,079 7,175,598,079
16,484,618,483 16,484,618,483 14,799,080,121 14,799,080,121
219,096,000 219,096,000 123,050,911 123,050,911

Unit: VND

01/01/2024 Additions Paid 31/12/2024

2,934,643,754 8,016,501,054 8,062,120,330 2,889,024,478

689,682,802 2,053,405,840 2,069,338,671 673,749,971

- 17,838,297 17,838,297 -

2,205,414,190 4,391,928,794 4,444 330,707 2,153,012,277

39,546,762 1,266,422,215 1,243,706,747 62,262,230

- 4,000,000 4,000,000 -

- 282,905,908 282,905,908 -
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5.14 Other short-term, and long-term payables

Short-term

Trade Union fees

Social insurance

Others

Long-term

Long-term deposits received

Total

5.15  Short-term provisions

Short-term

Goods, products warranty provision
Construction warranty provisions

Total
5.16  Owners’ equity

a. Changes of owners’ equity

As at 01/01/2023

Profit in the previous year
Appropriation to development
investment fund
Appropriation to bonus and
welfare fund

Executive Management Bonus

Dividends

As at 31/12/2023
As at 01/01/2024

Profit in this year
Appropriation to development
investment fund (i)
Appropriation to bonus and
welfare fund (i)

Dividends (i)

As at 31/12/2024

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
562,611,729 439,593,108
89,255,103 175,258,708
76,080,000 -
397,276,626 264,334,400
120,000,000 120,000,000
120,000,000 120,000,000
682,611,729 559,593,108
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
185,722,331 105,499,514
- 61,168,920
185,722,331 44,330,594
185,722,331 105,499,514
Development and
Share capital Investment Fund  Retained profits Total
39,000,000,000 12,949,714,164 16,034,878,529  67,984,592,693
- - 13,164,373,957  13,164,373,957
- 3,232,100,000 (3,232,100,000) =
- - (3,564,900,000)  (3,564,900,000)
- - (562,600,000) (562,600,000)
- - (7,800,000,000)  (7,800,000,000)
39,000,000,000 16,181,814,164 14,039,652,486  69,221,466,650
39,000,000,000 16,181,814,164 14,039,652,486  69,221,466,650
o - 13,988,503,533 13,988,503,533
- 1,316,400,000 (1,316,400,000) -
- - (2,682,300,000)  (2,682,300,000)
- - (7,800,000,000)  (7,800,000,000)
39,000,000,000 17,498,214,164 16,229,456,019 72,727,670,183

(i) The company distributed the profits for the year 2024 according to Resolution No. 283/PIACOM-
NQ.DHDCD of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024, dated 17" April 2024, as follows:

- Pay dividends VND 7,800,000,000;
- Appropriation to development investment fund VND 1,316,400,000;
- Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund VND 2,682,300,000.
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5.16  Owners’ equity (Continued)

Form B 09 - DN

b. Details of owners’ equity
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Petrolimex Construction and Trading
Corporation - Single Share-Holder Limited Company 19,622,030,000 £0,625,850,000
Others 19,370,950,000 19,370,950,000
Total 39,000,000,000 39,000,000,000
e Capital transactions with shareholders and appropriation of profits and dividends
In 2024 In 2023
VND VND

Shareholders’ capital
Opening balance

39,000,000,000

39,000,000,000

Increased during the period E -
Closing balance 39,000,000,000 39,000,000,000
Dividends distributed 7,800,000,000 7,800,000,000
d. Shares
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Shares Shares
Quantity of registered shares 3,900,000 3,900,000
Quantity of issued shares 3,900,000 3,900,000
Common shares 3,900,000 3,900,000
Purchased shares (treasury shares) o "
Outstanding shares 3,900,000 3,900,000
Common shares 3,900,000 3,900,000
Par value of outstanding shares (VND/ share) 10,000 10,000
5.17  Off Balance Sheet Items
Types of foreign currencies
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Original Equivalent to Original Equivalent to
currency VND currency VND
USD 84,389.58 2,132,943,681 9,328.29 224,900,983
Total 2,132,943,681 224,900,983
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6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE INCOME STATEMENT

6.1 Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Revenue from equipment business
Revenue from provision of services and software

Total

Revenue deductions

Sale return

Total

Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Revenue from equipment business
Revenue from providing services and software

Total

In which:
Revenue from related parties
(Details in Note 7.1)

6.2 Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold for the equipment
Cost of services rendered

Total

6.3 Financial income

Interest income from deposits
Realized exchange rate gain
Unrealized exchange rate gain
Others

Total

25

In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
66,798,658,394 38,786,095,503
92,095,547,335 79,928,061,772
158,894,205,729 118,714,157,275
In 2024 In 2023

VND VND

- 242,810,000

- 242,810,000

In 2024 In 2023

VND VND
66,798,658,394 38,543,285,503
92,095,547,335 79,928,061,772
158,894,205,729 118,471,347,275
116,868,027,532 70,851,218,558
In 2024 In 2023

VND

57,495,023,125
43,165,108,764

VND

33,212,099,139
31,234,119,236

100,660,131,889 64,446,218,375
In 2024 In 2023

VND VND
943,955,448 1,002,818,261
12,678,833 26,723,307
83,673,272 .

3 12,272,669

1,040,307,553 1,041,814,237
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6.4 Financial expenses

Realized exchange rate loss
Unrealized exchange rate loss

Total

6.5 Selling expenses

Selling expenses

Employee expenses

Materials expenses

Office supplies expenses

Amortization and Depreciation expenses
Outsourcing expenses

Other cash expense

Provision expenses

Total

6.6 Other income/ Other expenses

Other income

Debt management

Disposals of fixed assets

Receiving settlement for termination of labor contract
Fines receivable

Total

Other expenses

Late payment penalty for tax

Total

Net other income/ expenses

26

In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
38,212,048 10,257,488

. 1,012,410

38,212,048 11,269,898

In 2024 In 2023

VND VND
40,476,752,783 38,466,352,017
17,613,754,071 17,345,293,903
1,084,295,263 1,188,026,480
1,629,527,671 763,458,456

1,542,030,723

1,411,981,083

9,130,684,918 7,865,326,200
9,110,689,472 7,886,816,457
365,770,665 2,005,449,438
40,476,752,783 38,466,352,017
In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
27,960,000 -
181,818 200,000
49,038,802 40,090,093
1,960,420 -
79,141,040 40,290,093
458,125,275 527,895
458,125,275 527,895
(378,984,235) 39,762,198
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

6.7 Current corporate income tax expense
In 2024 In 2023
VND VND
Total net profit before tax 18,380,432,327 16,629,083,420
Adjustments
- Increase 967,252,692 694,463,895
+ Non-deductible expenses 967,252,692 694,463,895
- Decrease 82,623,639 -
+ Interest from revaluation of balances of cash and
; . i : 82,623,639 -
accounts receivable denominated in foreign currency
Total 19,265,061,380 17,323,547,315
Corporate Income Tax rate 20% 20%
Corporate income tax payable 3,853,012,276 3,464,709,463
Adjustment of Corporate Income Tax in previous years (*) 538,916,518 -
Corporate income tax payable 4,391,928,794 3,464,709,463

(*) According to the Tax Inspection Minutes at 28" June, 2024, the decision to sanction administrative
violations on taxes and invoices at 28" June, 2024 of the Hanoi Tax Department, the Company must pay
additional Corporate Income Tax from 2020 to 2023 in the amount of 156,749,721 VND. At the same time,
the Company accounts for an increase in Corporate Income Tax payable due to eliminating invoices
showing signs of risk from the year 2020. 2020 to 2023 amount 382,166,797 VND.

6.8 Basic earnings per share
In 2023
In 2024 VND
VND Re-presentation
Net accounting pr:ofit after corporate income 13,988,503,533 13,164,373,957

tax of the enterprise
Amount r:fﬂocated for welfare and ) (2,682,300,000)
managerial bonus reserve (*)
Profit or loss allocated to common shareholders 13,988,503,533 10,482,073,957
Average outstanding common shares during 3,900,000 3,900,000
the year (shares)

Basic earnings per share (VND/ share) 3,587 2,688

(*) At the Report date, the Company has not reliably estimated the amount of profit for the fiscal year ended
31 December, 2024 that can be allocated to the Bonus, Welfare, and Manager Bonus Fund. If the Company
deducts the Bonus, Welfare Fund, and Executive Management Board bonus for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2024, net profit attributable to shareholders and basic earnings per share will decrease.
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31* December 2024

6.8 Basic earnings per share (Continued)

Basic earnings per share for the fiscal year ended 31* December, 2023 are restated because in 2024 the
company will distribute profits according to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 283/PIACOM-NQ-DHDCD at 17* April, 2024 of the Company, accordingly, basic
earnings per share for the fiscal year ended 31 December, 2023 is presented as follows:

In 2023 In 2023
VND ' VND
(Presented) (Re-presentation) Differences
Profit after corporate income tax 13,164,373,957 13,164,373,957 -
Amount distracted from bonus and
welfare funds, remuneration for - (2,682,300,000) (2,682,300,000)
managers (*)
KRR SRR 13,164,373,957 10,482,073,957  (2,682,300,000)
shareholders
Quantity of outstanding common 3,900,000 3,900,000 i
share (Shares)
Basic earnings per share
(VND/ share) 3,375 2,688 (687)
6.9 Production and business expenses by factors
In 2023
In 2024 VND
VND (Re-presentation)
Raw material expenses 37,992,307,094 22,956,027,231
Employee expenses 39,961,798,410 30,841,516,827
Amortization and Depreciation expenses 1,576,637,055 1,446,587,415
Outsourcing expenses 49,605,418,496 36,688,273,530
Other cash expenses 9,110,689,472 8,217,923,205
Provision expenses 365,770,665 2,005,449,438
Total 138,612,621,192 102,155,777,646
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A OTHER INFORMATION
7.1 Information of related parties

The Company has transactions with related parties as follows:

Related Parties Relations
Petl:olimex Construction .an.d Trading Corporation Pt Conipanty

- Single Share-Holder Limited Company (PGCC)
Petroleum Logistic Service and Investment JSC (PLAND) In the same Parent Company
Petrolimex Technology — Construction Consultants JSC Subsidiary of PLAND
Petrolimex Equipment Joint Stock Company (PECO) In the same Parent Company
Petrolimex Engieering Joint Stock Company (PEC) ~ In the same Parent Company
Petrolimex International Trading Joint Stock Company (PITCO) In the same Parent Company
Petrolimex Paints Company Limited Subsidiary of PITCO
PTN Chemicals Company Limited In the same Parent Company
Vietnam National Petroleum Group Supreme Parent Company

Direct subsidiaries and indirect subsidiaries of Vietnam National Petroleum Subsidiaries with Vietnam
Group National Petroleum Group

Members of the Board of Directors, Board of Directors,

Supervisory Board and individuals related to key management members ey ieadecship members

In the year, the Company has transactions with related parties as follows:

Transaction with shareholders and key personnels

Salary bonus, and remuneration of the Board of Management, Board of Directors, Supervisory Board and
Chief Accountant:

Nature In 2024 In 2023
Related parties of transaction VND VND
Member of the Board of
Management, Supervisory, Salaries, bonuses, and remuneration 4,062,357,895 3,185,248,048

Directors, and Chief Accountant
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7.1 Information of related parties (Continued)

Transaction with shareholders and key personnels (Continued)

Details as follow:
In 2024 In 2023
Name Title VND VND
Remuneration for Board of Management 354,357,895 368,640,000
" Board of Management (Dismissed on
Mr. Nguyen Dinh Thanh 17/04/2024) 47,157,895 122,880,000
Mr. Hoang Hai Duong Board of Management 153,600,000 122,880,000
Mr. Nguyen Anh Toan Board of Management 153,600,000 122,880,000
Remuneration for Board of Supervisors 252,000,000 201,600,000
Ms. Dang Thi Hong Ha Head of the Board 180,000,000 144,000,000
Ms. Tran Thi Huong Member 72,000,000 57,600,000
Remuneration for Board of Directors and others 3,456,000,000 2,615,008,048
Chairman of Board of Management (Dismissed
s - ,579,048
Mr. Phan Thanh Son on 01/6/2023) 336,579,04
Mr. Tran Ngoc Tuan Chairman of Board of Management 1,104,000,000 716,000,000
Mr Nguyen Van Quy Director 1,044,000,000 605,429,000
Mr. Tran Quang Hung Deputy Director (Dismissed on 01/10/2023) - 410,000,000
Mr Tran Dang Dung Deputy Director 768,000,000 144,000,000
Ms. Cao Thi Hong Van Chief Accountant 540,000,000 403,000,000
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7:1 Information of related parties (Continued)

Transactions with related parties

Nature In 2024 In 2023
Related parties of transaction VND VND
Sales of goods 116,868,027,532 70,851,218,558
Petrolimex Construction and Trading :
Corporation - MTV Company Limited Direct parent company 1,155,926,000 1,307,738,000
Vietnam National Petroleum Group Supreme Parent Company 43,550,408,870 35,040,176,632
Individual petroleum trading companies
under the Vietnam National Petroleum Subsidiaries 59,207,087,001 23,646,837,366
Group
Petrolimex Transportation Services Same system as
: 488,480,000 591,005,000
Corporation Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Da Nang Transportation and Same system as
Trading Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group HERGTIE000 105,252,000
Petrolimex Ha Noi Transportation and Same system as
Trading Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group 167,234,000 956,466,000
Petrolimex Ha Tay Transportation and Same system as
Trading Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group 585,900 e s
Petrolimex Petrochemical Same system as
Corporation - JSC Petroleumn Group L 4150,064.000
g s Same system as
Petrolimex Asphalt Company Limited Petroleum Group 979,380,000 1,337,680,000
: . . s Siocks
Caibe Trading and Service Joint Stoc Same system as $85,000,000 i
Company Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Aviation Fuel Joint Stock Same system as 1,503,475,000 )
Company Petroleum Group
s ; ; _— Same system as
Petrolimex Kien Giang Company Limited Petroleum Group 354,609,256 -
Petrolimex Haiphong Transportation and Same system as 183.870.000
Services Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group sl i
Viet Nam Petroleum Transport Joint Same system as
Stock Company Petroleum Group 151,722,100 ,
: : Same system as
Petrolimex Tanker Corporation Petroleuna: Groop 486,366,000 -
g g Same system as
Petrolimex Gas Corporation - JSC 18,875,000 206,000,000
Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Saigon Transportation and Same system as
Service Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group BTN S
Petrolimex Nghe Tinh Transportation and ~ Same system as
Service Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group 1,689,383,205 B)I28360
li i i k
Fetrolimex Equipment Johit Stac Same Parent Company 195,200,000 8,200,000

Company
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71 Information of related parties (Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Nature In 2024 In 2023
Related parties of transaction VND VND
Petrolimex Thua Thien Hue A —
Transportation and Service Joint Stock Petroleun Group 1,222,942,500 86,980,000
Company
Petrolimex Petrochemical Same system as
Corporation - JSC Petroleum Group 5322004000 668,630,000
Purchase of goods 988,217,875 111,768,675
Vietnam National Petroleum Group Supreme Parent Company 300,600,000 15,000,000
Petroleum Logistic Service and
- Same Parent Company 83,236,502 84,201,861
Individual petroleum trading companies Subsidiaries wholly owned
under the Vietnam National Petroleum by the Vietnam National 23,963,952 5,479,814
Group Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Construction and Trading
Corporation - Single Share-Holder Parent Company 224,100,545 -
Limited Company
: : Same system as
PJICO Hanoi Insurance Corporation Petroleum Group 26,390,727 -
Petrolimex Insurance Joint Stock TR .,
Corporation - PYICO Dong Do Insurance Y 322,839,149 =
Petroleum Group
Company
; ; Same system as
PJICO Saigon Insurance Corporation Petroleum Group 7,087,000 7,087,000
Dividend 3,925,810,000 3,925,810,000
Petrolimex Construction and Trading
Corporation - Single Share-Holder Parent Company 3,925,810,000 3,925,810,000

Limited Company
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T Information of related parties (Continued)

Related Party Balance
Nature 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Related parties of transaction VND VND
Receivables 28,736,801,638 24,769,030,847
Vietnam National Petroleum Group Supreme Parent Company 17,988,544,756 9,218,658,328
Petroli i T i d st
etro' lrnex-Ha Noi Transportation an Same system as ) 959,834,000
Trading Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group
i trochemi tion - t
Petrolimex Petrochemical Corporation Same system as 756,652,000 111,372,800
JsC Petroleum Group
; i Same system as
Petrolimex Asphalt Company Limited Petroleun Group 576,450,000 583,308,000
. S
Petrolimex Aviation Fuel JSC o—r\ i . 990,800,000
Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Ha Tay Transportation and Same system as 478.501.400
Service Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group ) i
Caibe Trading and Service Joint Stock Same system as
Company Petroleum Group 160,000,000 )
; ; S
Vietnam National Petroleum Group i 247,140,000 265,875,000
Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Thua Thien Hue R CRT
Transportation and Service Joint Stock = 826,635,000 6,160,000
Petroleum Group
Company
Petrolimex Sai Gon Transportation and Same system as
Service Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group RO7155,000 G520
. : 5% Same system as
Petrolimex Chemicals Company Limited Petéalen Group 1,560,850,000 668,650,000
; ’ Same system as
Petrolimex Gas Corporation - JSC Perelents Gikip - 206,000,000
; ; = % Same system as
Petrolimex Kien Giang Company Limited Petroleum Gesip 180,182,128 275,188,878
Petrolimex Construction and Trading ;
: S D t &
Corporation - MTV Company Limited et e RO s
Individual petroleum trading companies Subsidiaries wholly owned
under the Vietnam National Petroleum by the Vietnam National 5,408,793,754 10,318,092,241
Group Petroleum Group
Repayments to suppliers 25,000,000 -
Hanoi 1 Branch - Region I S
oi Petroleum Branch - Region ame system as 25,000,000 )

Petroleum Company - One Member LLC

Petroleum Group
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7.1 Information of related parties (Continued)
Related Party Balance (Continued)
Nature 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Related parties of transaction VND VND
Trade payables 219,096,000 123,050,911
Vietnam National Petroleurn Group Supreme Parent Company 219,096,000 -
Petrolimex Construction and Trading .
- 115,500,000
Corporation - MTV Company Limited Digct parsit caipany ’
Petroleum Logistic Service and Same system as i 1.553.783
Investment JSC Petroleum Group TR
Individual petroleum trading companies Subsidiaries wholly owned
under the Vietnam National Petroleum by the Vietnam National - 5,997,128
Group Petroleum Group
Prepayment from customer 118,156,575 864,805,025
Individual petroleum trading companies Subsidiaries wholly owned
under the Vietnam National Petroleum by the Vietnam National 118,156,575 -
Group Petroleum Group
Petrolimex Haiphong Transportation and Same system as 85.590.000
Services Joint Stock Company Petroleum Group : e
Viet Nam Petroleum Transport Joint Same system as
Stock Company Petroleum Group g 83240903
Petrolimex Construction and Trading :
Corporation - MTV Company Limited Dieect pareat company . 715,274,120
7.2 Segment reporting
Segment report of income for the year ended 31/12/2024 as follow:
Revenue from sale  Providing services
of equipment and software Total
Net revenue 66,798,658,394 92,095,547,335 158,894,205,729
Costs of goods sold 57,495,023,125 43,165,108,764 100,660,131,889
Gross profit 9,303,635,269 48,930,438,571 58,234,073,840
OPERATING PROFIT/ LOSS
Internal Profit/ Loss 9,303,635,269 48,930,438,571 58,234,073,840
Financial income 1,040,307,553
Financial expenses (38,212,048)
Selli dG 1 and
e l.ng expt.:nses and General an (40,476,752,783)
administrative expenses
Other income (378,984,235)
Corporate income tax (4,391,928,794)
Profit after tax 13,988,503,533
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7.2 Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment report of income for the year ended 31/12/2023 as follow:

Revenue from sale  Providing services

of equipment and software Total
Net revenue 38,543,285,503 79,928,061,772 118,471,347,275
Costs of goods sold 33,212,099,139 31,234,119,236 64,446,218,375
Gross profit 5,331,186,364 48,693,942,536 54,025,128,900
OPERATING PROFIT/ LOSS
Internal Profit/ Loss 5,331,186,364 48,693,942,536 54,025,128,900
Financial income 1,041,814,237
Financial expenses (11,269,898)
Selh-ng expenses and General and (38,466,352,017)
administrative expenses
Other income 39,762,198
Corporate income tax (3,464,709,463)
Profit after tax 13,164,373,957
Segment report of assets and liabilities for the year ended 31/12/2024 as follow:

Revenue from sale  Providing services

of equipment and software Total
ASSETS
Prepaid expenses and construction in % 7,826,695,759 7,826,695,759
progress
Inventories 8,146,858,129 167,599,379 8,314,457,508
Assets cannot be allocated 84,974,913,097
Total assets 101,116,066,364
LIABILITIES
Liabilities cannot be allocated 28,388,396,181
Total liabilities 28,388,396,181
Segment report of assets and liabilities for the year ended 01/01/2024 as follow:

Revenue from sale  Providing services

of equipment and software Total
ASSETS
F’repasd expenses and construction ) 7,402,987,973 7.402,987.973
in progress
Inventories 9,127,173,058 287,482,352 9,414,655,410
Assets cannot be allocated 77,611,420,379
Total assets 94,429,063,762
LIABILITIES
Liabilities cannot be allocated 25,207,597,112
Total liabilities 25,207,597,112
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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7.3 Comparative figures

Comparative figures are taken from the separate financial statements for the year ended 31" December 2023
which are audited by CPA VIETNAM Auditing Company Limited - A Member of INPACT.

Hanoi, 10" March 2025

Prepare Chief Accountant
Nguyen Khanh Linh Cao Thi Hong Van Nguyen Van Quy
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CPAV/IETNAM

Starting our operation from 2004 up to now,
CPA VIETNAM is always proud to be one of
the independent auditing companies with a
reputable brand name trusted by many
customers in the field of auditing and
accounting in Vietnam. Our the goal is that
through the professional provision of
specialized services, we will help our
customers to innovate their internal
management system and promote their
potentials to create outstanding values. That
is the greatest success for our the sustainable
and prosperous development. CPA
VIETNAM will continue to maintain our brand
name in the future.

www.cpavietnam.vn

ACT

MEMBER

INP

Building a world class accounting alliance takes
time - since 1989, INPACT has grown steadily
and has carefully selected each and every
member firm. All of our members pass through a
rigorous selection process that ensures
stringent criteria related to range of services,
local reputation and approach to providing
services can be met. We only admit firms which
can prove they know their local jurisdiction like
the back of their hand and which have
experience of handling matters that have
international dimensions. Our members
embrace a service culture that emphasises
personal service, rapid response times,
reliability and innovative thinking.

www.inpactglobal.org
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